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Minutes  Agenda 
   

 
 

Finance Committee 
Electronic Meeting 

 
Anderson Room, City Hall 

6911 No. 3 Road 
Monday, June 2, 2025 

immediately following the General Purposes Committee meeting 
 
 
Pg. # ITEM  
 
  MINUTES 
 
FIN-4  Motion to adopt the minutes of the meeting of the Finance Committee held 

on May 5, 2025. 

  
 
  FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION 
 
 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION - 1ST QUARTER MARCH 31, 2025 

(File Ref. No. 03-0905-01) (REDMS No. 8031664) 

FIN-7  See Page FIN-7 for full report  
  Designated Speaker:  Cindy Gilfillan 

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
  That the staff report titled, “Financial Information – 1st Quarter March 31, 

2025”, dated May 2, 2025 from the Director, Finance, be received for 
information. 
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 2. 2024 ANNUAL REPORT AND 2024 ANNUAL REPORT HIGHLIGHTS 
(File Ref. No. 01-0375-01) (REDMS No. 8049162) 

FIN-32  See Page FIN-32 for full report  
  Designated Speaker:  Cindy Gilfillan 

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
  That the reports titled, “2024 Annual Report” and “2024 Annual Report – 

Highlights” be approved and posted on the City’s website. 

  
 
 3. ACTIVE CAPITAL PROJECTS FINANCIAL UPDATE – 1ST 

QUARTER MARCH 31, 2025 
(File Ref. No. 03-0975-01) (REDMS No. 8037659) 

FIN-140  See Page FIN-140 for full report  
  Designated Speaker:  Jenny Ho 

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
  That the staff report titled, “Active Capital Projects Financial Update – 1st 

Quarter March 31, 2025”, dated May 5, 2025 from the Director, Finance, 
be received for information. 

  
 
  LULU ISLAND ENERGY CORPORATION 
 
 4. LULU ISLAND ENERGY COMPANY – 2025 1ST QUARTER 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
(File Ref. No. 03-0950-01) (REDMS No. 8053390) 

FIN-156  See Page FIN-156 for full report  
  Designated Speakers:  Alen Postolka & Helen Zhao 

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
  That the Lulu Island Energy Company report titled “Lulu Island Energy 

Company – 2025 1st Quarter Financial Information”, dated April 21, 2025, 
from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, be received 
for information. 
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  RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
 
 5. RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION – 1ST QUARTER 

2025 FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
(File Ref. No. 03-1200-09) (REDMS No. 8060031) 

FIN-166  See Page FIN-166 for full report  
  Designated Speaker:  Rick Dusanj 

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
  That the Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation – 1st Quarter 2025 

Financial Information report from the Director, Finance, Innovation & 
Technology, Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation be received for 
information. 

  
 
  ADJOURNMENT 
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To: 

From: 

City of 
Richmond 

Finance Committee 

Mike Ching , CPA, CMA 
Director, Finance 

Report to Committee 

Date: May 2, 2025 

File: 03-0905-01/2025-Vol 
01 

Re: Financial Information -1st Quarter March 31, 2025 

Staff Recommendation 

That the staff report titled, "Financial Infonnation - 1st Quaiter March 31 , 2025", dated May 2, 
2N from the Director, Finance, be received for information. 

Mike Ching, CPA, CMA 
Director, Finance 
(604-276-4137) 

Att: 4 

REPORT CONCURRENCE 

ROUTED TO: CONCURRENCE CONCURRENCE 

Arts, Culture & Heritage Services 0 Housing Office 0 
Building Approvals 0 Information Technology 0 
Climate and Environment 0 Library Services 0 
Community Bylaws 0 Parks Services 0 
Community Safety Administration 0 Policy Planning 0 
Community Social Development 0 Public Works 0 
Development Applications 0 RCMP 0 
Economic Development 0 Real Estate Services 0 
Engineering 0 Recreation & Sport Services 0 
Facilities and Project Development 0 Transportation 0 
Fire Rescue 0 

CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER 

~ 
SENIOR STAFF REPORT REVIEW INITIALS: APPROVED BY CAO 

af <::.j_f(VJ\A. 
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Staff Report 

Origin 

Pre-audited financial information for the first quarter ( ended March 31, 2025) is being provided 
to the Finance Committee for review. The report provides details on the economic environment, 
financial results and other key indicator information. The financial information provides Council 
with an overview of the City of Richmond's (the City's) financial results throughout the year and 
before the annual audited financial statements are presented. 

This report supports Council's Strategic Plan 2022-2026 Focus Area #4 Responsible Financial 
Management and Governance: 

Responsible financial management and efficient use of public resources to meet the needs 
of the community. 

4.1 Ensure effective financial planning to support a sustainable future for the City. 

4.3 Foster community trust through open, transparent and accountable budgeting 
practices and processes. 

Economic Overview 

Following a prolonged period of unprecedented shocks, global growth had appeared to stabilize 
with steady but modest growth. However, the landscape has shifted once again, as governments 
reassess policy priorities and uncertainties have increased. Global growth forecasts have 
significantly declined within the first quaiier of the year, driven by historically high tariff rates 
and an increasingly unpredictable economic environment. The International Monetary Fund 
(IMF) is now forecasting global growth rates of 2.8% and 3.0% for 2025 and 2026 respectively. 
Meanwhile, global headline inflation is now expected to ease more gradually than previously 
projected. 

Canada's growth outlook primarily aligns with global trends, reflecting a moderated pace of 
expansion that is projected to continue. Real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is expected to 
remain stable at 1.4% in 2025 before rising to 1.6% in 2026. 1 The ongoing trade conflict with the 
United States (U.S.) has introduced significant uncertainty into Canada's economic outlook. 
Tariffs are expected to continue weighing on Canadian businesses, with growing concerns about 
a weaker U.S. outlook due to reciprocal tariffs and potential spillover effects on Canada. 
Inflation in Canada, as in B.C. and Metro Vancouver, is trending lower than global numbers and 
is expected to stabilize around the 2.0% target in the medium term. 

Richmond's economy remains relatively robust and resilient, driven by its diversified nature. 
While businesses face challenges such as uncertainty regarding tariffs and associated impacts, 
financing difficulties for large projects, labour sho1iages, and high input costs, overall economic 
activity remains strong. Industrial vacancy rates dipped slightly this past quarter after edging 
upwards at the end of 2024, and the industrial real estate market remains quite competitive. 

1 International Moneta1J' Fund, World Economic Outlook, April 2025. 
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Office vacancy has trended downward and remains lower than the Metro Vancouver average. 
Low growth should be expected in 2025, aligned with global conditions. 

Macroeconomic Indicators & Forecast 

1) Global Growth - Real Gross Domestic Product % Change2 

s.o • The IMF projects global GDP to decrease from 

6.0 .---- the 2024 rate of 3.3% to 2.8% in 2025, before 

4
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a downward revision to the forecast for 2025. 

• In 2025, Canadian GDP is forecasted to grow 
by 1 .4%, with U.S. and China GDP growth 
forecasts of 1.8% and 4.0%, respectively. 

• The 2025 global growth outlook marks a 
notable shift from the previous forecast, 
reflecting downward revisions for China, the 
U.S. and Canada. These revisions can be 
attributed to the effect of the U.S. tariffs and 
ongoing uncertainty. 

2) Interest Rates - US and Canadian Overnight Central Bank Rate% at Year End3 
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• By the end ofQl 2025, the Bank of Canada 
(BoC) had lowered its overnight lending 
rate to 2.75%, down from 3.25% at the end 
of 2024. 

• For the first time since last June, the BoC 
held interest rates steady in April 2025, 
citing heightened uncertainty in the 
economic outlook due to the ongoing U.S. 
trade tensions. 

• Amid growing concerns over the impact 
tariffs will have on a slowing economy, the 
U.S. Federal Reserve (U.S. FED) has 
maintained its key borrowing rate within 
the 4.25% - 4.50% range, unchanged since 
December 2024. 

2Jnternational Moneta,y Fund, World Economic Outlook (April 2025): A Critical Juncture amid Policy Shifts. 
3 US Federal Reserve, Bank of Canada and Royal Bank of Canada Research; Bank of Canada MonefalJ' Policy Report (April 2025); RBC 
Financial Markets Monthly (April 2025). 
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3) Exchange Rates - CAD/USD at Year End4 
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4) Unemployment5 
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• While the year-over-year outlook for 
CAD/USD exchange rates is expected to be 
relatively stable at $1.37 CAD/ $1 USD in 
2025 and $1.35 CAD/ $1 USD in 2026, short 
term fluctuations are likely. 

• The Canadian dollar was trading at a recent 
low of $1.44 CAD/$ I USD at the end of Q 1 
2025. CAD fluctuations minor global capital 
market trends, with investor concerns over 
US tariffs contributing to heightened market 
volatility. 

• According to Statistics Canada, national 
unemployment rose to 6. 7% in March, the 
first increase since November 2024, while in 
B.C., it increased to 6.1 %. 

• At the end of QI 2025, the Canadian, B.C., 
and Metro Vancouver unemployment rates 
were 6.7%, 6.1%, and 6.0%, respectively. 

• In March 2025, employment in the goods­
producing sector declined by 0.4% compared 
to February, while the services-producing 
sector saw a 0.3% increase. On a year-over­
year basis, employment in goods-producing 
industries rose by 1.0%, and services­
producing industries grew by 0.9%. 

4RBC Economics (RBC Financial Markets Monthly, April 2025); RBC Currency Report Card, March 2025. 
5Statistics Canada Labour Force Sw,,ey (March 2025); Labour Force Statistics Highlights Issue March 2025 #25-03. 
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5) Consumer Price Index (CPI-2002=100)6 
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Regional & Local Economic Activity Indicators 

6) Building Pennits - Richmond7 

Richmond Building Permits Issued 
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• The Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
increased by 2.3% year-over-year in 
March 2025, as compared to a 2.6% gain 
in February 2025 . This was the smallest 
year-over-year increase since February 
2021. 

• The slowing in inflation was largely due 
to lower year-over-year prices for travel 
tours and gasoline in March 2025. This 
slowdown was paitially offset by the end 
of the temporary Goods and Services 
Tax (GST)/Hannonized Sales Tax (HST) 
break on February 15, 2025, which 
contributed to higher prices in March 
relative to February. 

• On average over the past 12 months, 
inflation has been similar in Metro 
Vancouver at 2.4% relative to B.C. at 
2.6% and Canada at 2.3%. 

• During the first quarter of 2025, there were 
110 residential, 76 commercial, and 28 
industrial building permits issued in 
Richmond. 

• This represents an 18.6% decrease in total 
building permits issued over the same 
period in 2024, with the highest decrease 
in residential building pennits (20.9%) . 

• 194 new units were added to the local 
housing supply in Ql 2025, which 
represents a 38.6% decrease relative to 
the same period in 2024. There are 
substantial quaiter-over-quaiter 
fluctuations in the number of new units 
due to the longer development cycles for 
multi-family units . 

6Statistics Canada, Consumer Price Index; also Consumer Price Index, March 2025; also BC Stats, Consumer Price Index, March 2025, Issue 
25-03. 
7 City of Richmond Building Permits. 
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7) Construction Value8 
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8) Housing Starts9 

Housing Starts 
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• Approximately $127.5 million in 
construction value was registered in Q 1 
2025, a decrease of 37.5% from the same 
period last year. 

• Substantial quarter-over-quarter 
fluctuations in construction value can be 
expected, depending on the projects 
registered that quarter. 

• In Ql 2025, there were 69 housing starts in 
Richmond and 4,834 in Metro Vancouver, 
as measured by the Canada Mortgage and 
Housing Corporation (CMHC) and based 
on verification that construction work has 
commenced. 10 

• Year-to-date housing starts decreased by 
90.6% in Richmond and decreased by 
36.6% in Metro Vancouver, compared to 
the same period in 2024. There is a fair 
amount of fluctuation quarter by qumier, as 
is to be expected depending on project 
timelines. 

• The fluctuation between the number of 
residential units pennitted for construction 
and those repo1ied as housing stmis by 
CMHC are further exacerbated when larger 
projects requiring time to complete 
underground parking and foundations will 
show no housing stmis until construction 
has progressed to above grade. Housing 
units approved by pem1its issued in Q3 last 
year will likely be reflected in housing 
starts toward late 2025 and in 2026. 

9Canada A1ortgage and Housing Co1poration; 2025 Housing Market Outlook. 
10Housing Start is defined as the beginning of construction work on a building, generally when the concrete has been poured for the whole of the 
footing around the structure, or an equivalent stage where a basement will not be part of the structure. 
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9) Commercial Space" 
a) Industrial Space 

Industrial Space Inventory ('000 SF) 
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Note that the increased transit-oriented vacancy rate in Q4 2022 was due lo the 
Paramount development (6388 No. 3 Road) coming to marl<el. Shorl-term 
fluctuations are expected as new supply is added. 

• In Q 1, the Metro Vancouver industrial 
vacancy rate increased to 3.6% (highest 
reported vacancy rate since Q3 2016) and is 
approaching a more balanced market. Recent 
new construction completions are primarily 
driving the increased vacancy rate. 

• In Richmond, the industrial vacancy rate 
remains lower than Metro Vancouver at 
1.9% in Ql 2025 . This rate has decreased 
slightly from Q4 2024 and has been 
relatively stable for the last three quarters. 

• Despite economic unce1tainty, leasing 
activity has remained strong across Metro 
Vancouver, with strong demand from 
wholesale distributors, manufacturers, 
distribution and engineering services, and 
recreation and fitness tenants. 

• At the end of Ql 2025, Metro Vancouver's 
office vacancy rate held steady at 11 .4% 
for the second qua11er in a row, though this 
reflects a 12.9% increase from the same 
time last year . 

• In Richmond, the Q 1 office vacancy rate 
decreased slightly to 10.5%, with transit­
oriented vacancy also decreasing from last 
quarter to 7.2% 12

. 

• New leasing activity in Metro Vancouver 
this quarter was primarily driven by the 
financial and legal sectors. Although no 
major new entrants joined the market in 
Ql, tech-related tenants continue to 
represent a stable presence, accounting for 
approximately 40.0% of all active tenant 
requirements. 

• Average asking rents in Richmond are the 
lowest in the Metro Vancouver region. 

11 Cushman & Wakefield Office and Industrial Markel Beal Reports QI 2025. 
12Note that transit-oriented office data is sourced from Cushman and Wakefield for consistency across commercial vacancy rates presented in this 
report. The definition of "transit-oriented office" is office space within 600 meters ofa Skytrain station. As thi s definition includes a limited 
number of developments in the City Centre, any change (whether related to new inventory or absorption) may have a seemingly disprop01tionate 
impact on the data. 
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10) Business Growth - Richmond 13 

a) New Business Licences - Number and Employees 

Richmond New Business licences 
2023 2024 

Saum,; City of Richmond 

2025 

• 556 new business licences (representing 
2,471 jobs) were issued by the City of 
Richmond in Ql 2025, a 26.1 % increase in 
new licences and a 48.7% increase in 
corresponding jobs as compared to the same 
period last year. 

• These new business licences are paii of the 
City' s 13,708 total valid business licenses at 
the end of Ql 2025. Fluctuations are 
expected in the number of total valid 
business licences, as businesses update their 
information as needed and renew their 
licences annually. 

b) New Business Licences - Commercial Space 

NewB~~;;ssllcences - CommerclalSi~~~Added 2025 • 907,372 square feet (sq. ft .) of commercial 
,oooK , space absorption was tied to the new 
gooK business licenses issued during Q 1 2025. 
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13City of Richmond Business Licencing data. 
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• This is an increase of 146.1 % compared to 
the same time period last year. The 
greatest amount of space was required by 
industrial (541 ,816 sq. ft.), followed by 
office (229,822 sq. ft.) , and then retail 
(135,734 sq. ft.). 
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11) Goods and People Movement 

a) Regional Cargo Movement14 

Regional Cargo Movement 
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b) Airport Passengers 15 
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c) Richmond Hotel Room Revenue 16 

Richmond Hotel Room Revenue 

Source: City of Richmond Hotel Tax Ledger 
Note: Richmo1ul Hotel Room Revenue for QI 2025 includes Jamta1J1 and Februmy data only 
where QI 2024 includes lhefu/l 3 months 

14Port of Vancouver Monthly Cargo Statistics; YVR Aionthly Statistics. 
15YVR Monthly Statistics. 

• In Ql 2025, cargo volumes handled by the 
Port of Vancouver, as measured by Twenty 
Foot Equivalents (TEUs), increased by 2.0%, 
as compared to the same period last year. 

• In the first three months of 2025, 83,915 
tonnes of air cargo passed through the 
Vancouver International Airpmi (YVR), 
which is an 8.0% increase as compared to the 
same period last year. 

• Passenger travel through YVR continues to 
be strong, with an increase of 1. 7% during 
the first two months of 2025 (6.09 million) as 
compared to the same period last year (5.99 
million). 

• Canada continues to be a popular destination 
for travelers. In 2024, YVR recorded a total 
of 26.2 million passengers, representing a 
5.2% increase over the 24.9 million 
passengers in 2023. This figure marks the 
second-highest annual passenger volume in 
the airpmi's history, closely approaching the 
record of26.3 million set in 2019 

• Hotel room revenues in Richmond for the first 
two months of Q 1 were $34.SM, which is 13 .1 % 
lower than the same period last year. 

• Average first quaiier hotel occupancy in 
Richmond was fairly strong at 72.4%, which 
reflects a 0.5% decrease from the same 
period last year. 

16City of Richmond Additional Hotel Room Tax Ledger; STR Global (April 2025). 
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Residential Real Estate 17 

The first quarter of 2025 was marked by steady inventory levels, though buyer demand remains 
restrained. Even with some recent easing in interest rates, many potential buyers are still 
cautious, holding back due to higher overall borrowing costs. As a result, home prices have 
leveled off, with the market showing signs of continued stabilization rather than growth. 

Richmond - Residential Sales 
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17 Real Estate Board of Greater Vancouver. 
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• Single family detached (SFD) home sales 
decreased by 7.9% compared to Ql 2024. 

• Townhouse sales have increased by 6. 7% 
and apaiiment sales have decreased by 
2.3% compared to Ql 2024. 

• Townhouse sales comprise 24.2% of the 
residential home sales in Richmond. SFD 
and apartment sales account for 24.8% and 
50.9%, respectively, of home sales in 
Richmond. 

• There were 656 residential home sales in 
Richmond in Ql 2025, a 1.8% decrease 
compared to the same period last yeai·. 

• Richmond residential properties had a 
sales-to-active listings ratio of 13. 0% as 
at March 31 , 2025. 

• Analysis of historical data suggests 
downward pressure on home prices 
occurs when the ratio dips below 12% for 
a sustained period, while home prices 
often experience upward pressure when it 
surpasses 20% over several months. 

• At Ql 2025, SFD properties in Richmond 
had an average of 46 days on the market, 
a 19.3% decrease compared to Ql 2024. 

• Townhouses and apartments in Richmond 
had an average of 37 and 42 days on the 
market, respectively, representing a 5.1 % 
decrease and a 13 .5% increase, 
respectively, over the same period last 
year. 
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Greater Vancouver - Average Days on Market 
70 

60 

50 

40 

30 

20 

10 

52,500,000 

S2,100,000 

S1,700,000 

S1,300,000 

S900,000 

01-2024 02-2024 03-2024 04-2024 01-2025 

- sm;~Fa.mity - Townhouse - Aparurent 

Richmond vs. Greater Vancouver Residential 
Home Price Index (HPI) 

01-2024 02-2024 

~ Rictvnond Slngle Farnly 

- Rictrnond Townhouse 

- Rlctmond Apartment 

03-2024 04-2024 01-2025 

~ Greater Vancouver Si1g1e Famly 

.....,.Greater Vancouver Tov.mouse 

- Greater Vancouve,- Apartment 

• At Ql 2025, SFD properties in GVRD 
had an average of 48 days on the market, 
which represents an increase of 6. 7% 
compared to Ql 2024. 

• Townhouses and apaiiments in GVRD 
had an average of35 and 37 days on the 
market, respectively, representing a 
16.7% and 8.8% increase, respectively, 
over the same period last year. 

• The Home Price Index (HPI) 18 for SFD 
prope1iies in Richmond at Q 1 2025 was 
$2,168,600, a 1.0% decrease compared to 
Ql 2024. The GVRD housing market has 
increased with SFD prope1iies priced at 
$2,034,400, which represents a 1.3% 
increase compared to the same quarter 
last year. 

• At Ql 2025, the HPI for townhouse 
prope1iies in Richmond was $1,108,400, 
a decrease of 3.4% compared to Ql 2024. 
The HPI for townhouse properties in 
GVRD was $1,113,100, which is 
comparable to the same time last year. 

• The HPI for apartments in Richmond was 
$731,700, a decrease of 5 .2% compared 
to Ql 2024. The HPI for apartments in 
GVRD was $767,300, which represents a 
1.4% decrease compared to the same time 
last year. 

18 Home Price Index is a tool to measure home prices trends in Metro Vancouver and other major markets in the country. It is an alternative 
measure of real estate prices that provides the market trends over traditional tool s such as mean or median average prices. 
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Gaming Revenue 

In accordance with the Host Financial Assistance Agreement with the Province of BC 
(Province), the Province pays 10% of net gaming income to the City. Net gaming revenue is 
calculated as net win from casino games less (i) fees payable by BC Lottery Corporation (BCLC) 
to the service provider, and (ii) BCLC's administrative and operating costs. Distributions are 
subject to volatility due to fluctuations in net win from casino games, operating costs and 
accounting adjustments. 

$6 

$5 

Gaming Revenue by Quarter 
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■ 2024 ■2025 

Q4 

• The gaming revenue for Q 1 2025 was 
$2,697,340 a decrease of 11.4% 
compared to the same quarter last year 
when $3 ,045,099 was received. 

• The 2025 budget for gaming revenue is 
$11 ,500,000. Actual revenue received 
year to date is 23.5% of the total budget. 

Gaming revenue is dependent on the operations of the River Rock Casino, these amounts may 
vary due to consumer behaviours, changes in regulations and competition. 

At the January 27, 2025 Council meeting, the 2025 Budget was approved which included the 
gaming revenue allocation for 2025. The distribution of these funds is detailed in Table 1 with 
any surplus revenue or shortfall to be transferred to the capital reserve. 

Table 1: Distribution of the 2025 gaming revenue allocation 

Capital Reserves 
Grants 
Council Community Initiatives Account 
Debt Servicing 
Operating (RCMP)* 
Total 

Distribution 
Remainder 

25% 
2% 

Fixed 
9% 

2025 Budget 
$I.OM 
2.9M 
0.2M 
6.4M 
I.OM 

$11.SM 
*The fu nding allocati on towards total policing costs is calcul ated based on the cost of four officers and does not refl ect actual policing effort . 
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Operating Activity 

Table 2 compares budget to unaudited actual activity up to March 31, 2025. The net figure 
represents combined revenue and expense amounts. Actuals include estimates for revenues 
earned and expenses incurred to date where invoices may not yet be issued or received. 

Corporate Administration $2,867 $2,761 $106 

Engineering and Public Works 19,776 19,571 205 

Finance and Corporate Services 8,499 8,183 316 

Fire Rescue 14,806 14,551 255 

Law and Community Safety4 (214) (381) 167 

Library 3,399 3,377 22 

Parks, Recreation and Culture 14,175 13,657 518 

Planning and Development 1,993 1,417 576 

Policing 20,763 18,539 2,224 

Fiscal (33,519) (33,910) 391 

4% 

1% 

4% 

2% 

78% 

1% 

4% 

29% 

11% 

1% 

Total $52,545 $47,765 $4,780 9% 

Flood Protection Utility $13,000 $12,983 $17 0% 

Sanitary Sewer Utility 6,944 6,731 213 3% 

Sanitation and Recycling Utility 521 16 505 97% 

Water Utility 6,948 6,667 281 4% 

Utilities Total $27,413 $26,397 $1,016 4% 
1Net Operational Activity does not include amounts related to capital such as: contributed assets, developer contributions, amortization, etc. It 
does not represent Generally Accepted Accounting Principles but is presented on a modified cash basis. 
2The Net Budget is based on the operating budget approved by Council on January 27, 2025. 
3Includes budgeted equity transactions such as transfer to reserves, transfer to provision, transfers from provision, etc. 
4Includes Law and Community Safety Administration, Animal Protection Services, Business Licences, Community Bylaws, Emergency 
Programs and Legal Services. 

The following section provides an explanation on a Divisional/Departmental basis of year-to­
date variances in relation to the 2025 Financial Plan: 

• Corporate Administration's favourable variance mainly due to vacancies that are in the 
process of being filled and timing of operational spending. 

• Engineering and Public Works' favourable variance is mainly due to unbudgeted 
underpinning fee revenue. 

• Finance and Corporate Services' favourable variance is mainly due to temporarily vacant 
positions in the process of being backfilled and lower overtime and auxiliary staff relative 
to budget. 

• Fire Rescue's favourable variance is driven primarily by retirements and vacant positions. 

• Law and Community Safety ( excluding fire rescue and policing) has a favourable variance 
due to vacant positions from recent staff movements and positions under review. 
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• Library is on budget. Any surplus at year-end will be appropriated for future use within 
Library operations. 

• Parks, Recreation and Culture's favourable variance is mainly due to vacant positions in 
Recreation. 

• Planning and Development's favourable variance is primarily due to vacant positions as a 
result of recent staff movements and positions under review. 

• Policing's favourable variance can be attributed to lower-than-expected expenditures on 
the policing contract, primarily driven by vacancies within the RCMP officer complement. 

• Fiscal's favourable variance is mainly due to the timing of expenditures 

• Flood Protection Utility is on budget. 

• Sanitary Sewer Utility's variance is due to favourable utility revenue and lower 
operational expenses. Any surplus at year-end will be transferred to the Sewer 
Stabilization Provision. 

• Sanitation and Recycling Utility's favourable variance is mainly due to Recycle BC 
revenue due to changes in the renegotiated agreement and higher utility fees due to 
additional customers. Any surplus at year end will be transferred to the General Solid 
Waste and Recycling Provision. 

• Water Utility's favourable variance is mainly due to lower operational expenses. Any 
surplus at year-end will be transferred to the Water Levy Provision. 

The presentation of the figures for the Financial Statement, Statement of Operations is different 
from the Net Budget presentation above. The above presentation combines revenues and 
expenses, and presents the net amount inclusive of transfers. The Statement of Operations 
presents the revenues and expenses separately and prior to any appropriations and transfer to 
reserves. The Statement of Operations for the Three Month Period Ended March 31, 2025, with 
comparative figures for 2024, is included in Attachment 3. 

Cash and Investment Portfolio 

As of March 31, 2025, the City's total cash and investment balance was $1. 7 billion, which 
represents the City's working capital for ongoing operational obligations, as well as funds held in 
reserves and liability accounts for future and restricted uses. The City's total cash and investment 
balance was comprised of $1.5 billion in investments and $181.8 million in high interest savings 
cash account, with a weighted average annualized yield of 4.02%. 

At the April 16, 2025 interest rate announcement, the BoC held its key policy rate unchanged at 
2.75%. This was the Bank's first pause after seven consecutive cuts for a total reduction of 
2.25% since the easing cycle that commenced in June 2024. 

Global economic growth was solid in late 2024 and inflation has been easing towards central 
bank targets. However, tariffs and uncertainty have weakened the outlook. In Canada, the 
economy is slowing as tariff announcements and unce1iainty pull down consumer and business 
confidence. Consumption, residential investment and business spending all look to have 
weakened in the first quarter. 
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The City' s overall credit risk exposure remains stable as the City continues to maintain a 
diversified and high credit quality investment p01ifolio, where 47.0% is invested in chartered 
bank deposits and bonds, 48 .2% in federal and provincial government securities, 4.0% in credit 
unions deposits and 0.8% in a MF A long-term bond. 

The chart below shows the investment maturity summary by te1m to maturity. The City 's cash 
and investment p01ifolio has been strategically positioned to allow the City to sustain favourable 
investment yields in the long-run, while balancing the needs of near-term cash flow required to 
support operations and approved capital plans. 

Under 1 yea r 

1 to 2 years 

2 to 3 years 

3 to 4 years 

I 
4 to 5 years 

I 
Over 5 yea rs -

I 
$0 

Ql 2025 Investment Maturity Summary 

$100 $200 $300 

■ Ba nks ■ BC Credi t Unions ■ Federal Cre dit Union ■ Provinces ■ M FA ■ Federal 

$400 $500 

Mill ions 

Staff will continue to monitor the interest rate movement and will position its cash and 
investments to ensure that, amongst its investment policy objectives, capital preservation and 
liquidity continue to be the most critical considerations for all municipal investment decisions. 

All investment activities have been conducted in compliance with the City's Investment Policy 
3703 . Based on Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) Environmental, Social, and 
Governance (ESG) rating of the City's fixed income portfolio, the City continues to receive a 
high ESG rating of "AA" as of Q 1 2025. 

Contract Awards 

In accordance with Procurement Policy 3104, this rep01i provides info1mation on new contract 
awards and aggregate contract extensions greater than $75,000. During the first qua1ier, 34 
contracts greater than $75,000 were awarded totalling over $19.3 million (Attachment 4). 

Financial Impact 

None. 
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Conclusion 

The March 31, 2025 financial infonnation report provides details on the economic enviromnent, 
financial results and other key indicator information to the Finance Committee for inf01mation. 
d 

Cindy Gilfillan, CPA, CMA 
Manager, Financial Reporting 
(604-276-4077) 

CG:nj 

Att. 1: Economic Indicators 
2: Financial and Key Indicators 
3: Unaudited Statement of Operations 
4: Contract Awards Greater than $75,000 

8031664 

FIN - 22



Attachment 1 

I Economic Indicators March 31, 2025 I 

Macroeconomic Indicators & Forecast 

1) Rea l GDP (% at YE) 2025f 2026f 
Canada 1.4 1.6 

United States 1.8 1.7 

China 4.0 4.0 

World 2.8 3.0 

2) Interest Rates (at YE) 2025f 2026f 
Bank of Canada 2.25 2 .50 

US FED 3.63 2.88 

3) Exchange Rate (at YE) 2025f 2026f 
CAD per $1 USO 1.37 1.35 

4) Unemployment (% at QE) Q1-2025 Q4-2024 Change Q1-2024 Change 
Canada 6.7 6.7 0.0% 6.1 9.8% 
BC 6.1 5.9 3.4% 5.5 10.9% 
Metro Vancouver 6.0 6.4 (6 .3%) 5.5 9.1% 

5) CPI (2002=100) (at QE) Q1-2025 Q4-2024 Change Q1-2024 Change 
Canada 163.5 161.2 1.4% 159.8 2 .3% 
BC 157.8 156.1 1.1% 153.8 2.6% 
Metro Vancouver 160.4 159.8 0.4% 156.6 2.4% 

Regional and Local Market Indicators 

6) Richmond Building Permits Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change YTD-2025 YTD-2024 Change 
Residential - New Construction 30 39 (23.1%) 30 39 (23.1%) 
Residential - Alterations 80 100 (20.0%} 80 100 (20.0%} 
Residential Total 110 139 (20.9%) 110 139 (20.9%) 

Number of units from new residential 
construction 194 316 (38.6%) 194 316 (38.6%) 

Residential 110 139 (20.9%) 11 0 139 (20.9%) 
Commercia l 76 99 (23.2%) 76 99 (23.2%) 
Industrial 28 25 12.0% 28 25 12.0% 
Bui lding Permits Total 214 263 (18.6%) 214 263 (18.6%) 

Construction Value ($ mill ion) 127.5 203.9 (37.5%) 127.5 203.9 (37.5%) 

7) Housing Starts CMHC (Units) Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change YTD-2025 YTD-2025 Change 
Starts - Richmond 69 735 (90.6%) 69 735 (90.6%) 
Starts - Metro Vancouver 4,834 7,627 (36.6%) 4,834 7,627 (36.6%) 

Richmond Residential Sales 
8) Activity Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change YTD-2025 YTD-2024 Change 

Sales - Detached 163 177 (7.9%) 163 177 (7.9%) 
Sales - Townhouse 159 149 6.7% 159 149 6.7% 
Sales - A~artment 334 342 (2.3%} 334 342 (2.3%} 
Sales - Tota l 656 668 (1.8%) 656 668 (1 .8%) 
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I Economic Indicators March 31, 2025 J 

Regional and Local Market Indicators (continued) 

9) Richmond Sales to Active Listings 
Ratio (% at QE) Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change 
Single Family Detached 8.4% 17.9% (53.1%) 

Townhouse 17.8% 40.6% (56.2%) 

Apartment 14.3% 26.8% (46.6%) 

Total 13.0% 25 .1% (48.2%) 

10) Average Days on Market 

Richmond Metro Vancouver 

Property Type Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change 

Single Family Detached 46 57 (19 .3%) 48 45 6.7% 

Townhouse 37 39 (5.1%) 35 30 16.7% 

Apartment 42 37 13.5% 37 34 8.8% 

11) Home Price Index ($000 at QE) 

Richmond Metro Vancouver 

Property Type Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change 

Single Family Detached 2,169 2,191 (1.0%) 2,034 2,008 1.3% 

Townhouse 1,108 1,147 (3.4%) 1,113 1,113 0.0% 

Apartment 732 772 (5.2%) 767 778 (1.4%) 

12) Commercial Space (at QE) Richmond Metro Vancouver 

Q1-2025 Q1 -2024 Change Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change 

Office Vacancy (%) 10.5 10.0 5.0% 11.4 10.1 12.9% 

Transit Oriented Office Vacancy(%) 7.2 6.6 9.1% N/A N/A N/A 

Office Inventory (000 sf) 5,094 5,090 0.1% 70,040 67,978 3.0% 

Industrial Vacancy(%) 1.9 0.8 137.5% 3.6 2.5 44.0% 

Industrial Inventory (000 sf) 46 ,762 45 ,863 2.0% 247 ,870 244 ,064 1.6% 

13) Richmond Business Growth Q1-2025 Q1 -2024 Change YTD-2025 YTD-2024 Change 
Total Valid Business Licences 

(at QE) 13,708 13,982 (2 .0%) N/A N/A N/A 

New Licences - Number Issued 556 441 26.1% 556 441 26.1% 

New Licences - Employees 2,471 1,662 48.7% 2,471 1,662 48.7% 

New Licences - Office Added (sf) 229,822 154,095 49.1% 229,822 154,095 49.1% 

New Licences - Retail Added (sf) 135,734 48,009 182.7% 135,734 48,009 182.7% 

New Licences - Industrial Added {sf) 541,816 166,656 225.1% 541 ,816 166,656 225.1% 

Total Space Added (sf)/Avg . Change 907,372 368,760 146.1% 907,372 368,760 146.1% 
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Attachment 1 

Economic Indicators March 31, 2025 

Regional and Local Market Indicators (continued) 

14) Goods & People Movement 01 -2025 

YVR Air Cargo (tonnes) 83,915 
PMV Container Movement 

(TEUs) 877,589 

YVR Passengers (million) 6.09 
Richmond Hotel Revenue 

($ million)* 34.5 

Notes: 
a) 
b) 

QE indicates quarter-end; YE indicates year-end. 
f -forecast to year-end 

Q1-2024 Change YTD-2025 YTD-2024 

77,732 8.0% 83,915 77 ,732 

860,605 2.0% 877,589 860,605 

5.99 1.7% 6.09 5.99 

39.7 (13.1%) 34.5 39.7 

*Richmond Hotel Room Revenue for QI 2025 includes Jam1a1J1 and Februa1J1 dale only. YTD includes data for Janua1J1 and Febnta1J1 only. 

List of Sources : 

/) 
2) 
3) 

4) 

lntem ational Moneta1J• Fund, World Economic Outlook (April 2025).A Critical Juncture amid Policy Shifts. 
US Federal Reserve, Bank of Canada and Royal Bank of Canada Research: Bank of Canada Moneta1J• Policy Report, April 2025. 
RBC Economics RBC Financial Markets Monthly, April 2025. 

Statistics Canada labour Force Survey (March 2025); BC Stats labour Force Statistics Highlights, March 2025 Issue #25-03. 

Change 

8.0% 

2.0% 

1.7% 

(13 .1%) 

5) 

6) 

Statistics Canada, Consumer Price Index; also Consumer Price Index, At/arch 2025; also BC Stats, Consumer Price Index, A1arch 2025, 

City of Richmond Building Permits. 

7) 

8), 9), JO) &JJ) 

12) 

13) 

14) 

803 1664 

Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation; 2025 Housing Market Outlook. 

Real Estate Board of Greater Vancouver. 

Cushman & Wakefield Office and Industrial Market Beal Reports, QI 2025. 

City of Richmond Business licences data. 

Port of Vancouver Monthly Cargo Statistics; YVR Monthly Statistics. 
YVR Monthly Statistics; 

City of Richmond Hote l Tax l edger; STR Global (April 2025). 
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Attachment 2 

I Financial and Key Indicators March 31, 202s j 
(All dollar amounts in $000's) 

1) Development Cost Charges Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change YTD-2025 YTD-2024 Change 
Contributions* 
Roads, Water, Sewer DCCs 

Received $9,791 $3 ,289 197.7% $9 ,791 $3,289 197.7% 

Parks DCCs Received $2,703 $3,254 (16.9%) $2,703 $3,254 (16.9%) 

Total DCC Fees Received $12,494 $6,543 91 .0% $12,494 $6,543 91 .0% 
DCC Reserves - Uncommitted 

Balance at QE $166,254 $150,201 10.7% N/A N/A N/A 

2) Uncommitted Reserves (at QE) Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change 

Capital Funding Reserves $283,710 $204,586 38.7% 

Utility Reserves $92,193 $84,726 8.8% 

Affordable Housing Reserves $10,918 $10,458 4.4% 

Other Reserves $102,199 $110,651 (7.6%) 

Total Uncommitted Reserves $489,020 $410,421 19.2% 

3) Taxes to date Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change YTD-2025 YTD-2024 Change 

Taxes Collected $22,094 $17,829 23.9% $22,094 $17,829 23.9% 

City Portion of Taxes Collected $11,268 $9,093 23.9% $11 ,268 $9,093 23.9% 
Unpaid Taxes - Delinquent & 

Arrears (at QE) $19,421 $15,502 25.3% $19,421 $15,502 25.3% 
No. of Participants on Pre-

authorized withdrawal (at OE) 6,412 6,359 0.8% 6,412 6,359 0.8% 
Pre-authorized withdrawals 

payments $14,521 $13,474 7.8% $14,521 $13,474 7.8% 

Interest rate % paid 3.45% 5.20% (33.7%) 3.45% 5.20% (33.7%) 
Sources: All data is from City of Richmond records 

4) Cash and Investments Q1 -2025 Q1-2024 Change 

Investments $1,539,031 $1,400 ,854 9.9% 
Cash (includes high interest 
savings accounts) $181,811 $244,746 (25.7%) 

Total Cash and Investments $1,720,842 $1,645,600 4.6% 
Average City Rate of Return on 

Investments % 4.02% 4.59% (12.4%) 

5) Planning and Development Q1 -2025 Q1-2024 Change YTD-2025 YTD-2024 Change 

Building Permit Fees 
Collected $2,130 $2,323 (8.3%) $2,130 $2,323 (8.3%) 

Development Applications 
Received 31 23 34.8% 31 23 34.8% 

Development Applications 
Fees $204 $211 (3.3%) $204 $211 (3.3%) 
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Attachment 2 

I Financial and Key Indicators March 31, 20251 
(All dollar amounts in $000's) 

Financial and Key Indicators (continued) 

6) Business Licences Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change YTD-2025 YTD-2024 Change 
Revenue Received for 

Current Year Licences $2,209 $2,281 (3.2%) $2,209 $2,281 (3.2%) 

7) Other Revenues Q1-2025 Q1-2024 Change YTD-2025 YTD-2024 Change 

Parking Program Revenue $734 $577 27.2% $734 $577 27.2% 

Gaming Revenue $2,697 $3,045 (11.4%) $2,697 $3,045 (11.4%) 

Traffic Fine Revenue $0 $0 0% $0 $0 0% 

8) Employees Q1 -2025 Q1-2024 Change 
Full Time Equivalent (FTE) 

Employees (at QE) 1,752 1,678 4.4% 
(City and Library) 
FTE includes Regular Full Time, Temporary and Auxiliary status employees. The calculation is based on actual results. 

9) Operating Indicators 
RCMP - Calls for Service 

Handled 

Community Bylaws 

Fire-Rescue Incidents 

Public Works Calls for Service 

10) Richmond Population 
Estimate Year End 

Population figures from BC Stats 

Notes: 

Q1-2025 

16,449 

1,584 

3,270 

3,096 

2025f 

241,151 

a) All figures presented above are unaudited 
b) f - forecast to year-end 

8031664 

Q1-2024 

16,885 

1,694 

3,504 

3,422 

2024f 

242,966 

Change 

(2.6%) 

(6.5%) 

(6.7%) 

(9.5%) 

YTD-2025 YTD-2024 Change 

16,449 16,885 (2.6%) 

1,584 1,694 (6.5%) 

3,270 3,504 (6.7%) 

3,096 3,422 (9.5%) 
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Unaudited Statement of Operations1 

For the Three Month Period Ended March 31, 2025, with comparative figures for 2024. 

in $000's 

Budget Actuals 
March 31, March 31, 

2025 2025 

Revenue: 

Taxes and levies $82,655 $82,655 

Utility fees 40,814 40,771 

Sales of services 12,418 10,667 

Payments-in-lieu of taxes 3,750 3,450 

Provincial and federal grants 2,970 1,031 

Development cost charges 3,215 1,788 

Other capital funding sources 19,551 7,042 

Other revenue: 

Investment income 7,659 14,769 

Gaming revenue 2,875 2,697 

Licences and permits 4,578 4,949 

Other 14,612 16,689 

Eguitt income 298 650 

$195,395 $187,158 

Expenses: 

Law and community safety $43,027 $40,052 

Utilities4 37,772 33,257 
Engineering, public works and project 

development 19,190 16,480 

Parks, recreation and culture services 20,032 17,154 

General government 36,240 34,527 

Planning and development 6,078 5,160 

Library services 3,238 2,992 

$165,577 $149,622 

YTD Surplus (Annual Surplus)2 $29,818 $37,536 

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 3,866,374 3,866,374 

Accumulated surelus, end of March 31 3 $3,896,192 $3,903,910 

Attachment 3 

Actuals 
March 31, 

2024 

$78,482 

34,556 

10,090 

3,350 

4,857 

1,308 

3,826 

15,739 

3,045 

5,274 

16,954 

720 

$178,201 

$35,810 

29,947 

15,426 

16,107 

34,542 

8,601 

2,925 

$143,358 

$34,843 

3,831,531 

$3,866,374 

1Statement of Operations for City and library after intercompany eliminations includes investment in Lulu Island Energy Company but excludes Oval 
results. 
'Annual Surplus is the difference between revenues and expenses and reflects the change in the accumulated surplus on the Statement of 
Financial Position. Annual Surplus is prior to transfer to reserves and surplus appropriations. The revenues include capital contributions, 
development cost charges and other items that impact the investment in tangible capital assets within the accumulated surplus. The expenses 
include amortization, which impacts the investment in tangible capital assets in accumulated surplus. 
3Accumulated surplus is equivalent to the net worth of an organization and is comprised of investment in tangible capital assets, reserves, 
appropriated surplus, general surplus and other equity. 
4Utilities includes flood protection, water, sanitary sewer, and sanitation and recycling. 
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Item 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Contract Awards Greater than $75,000 
January 15tto March 31 st, 2025 

Description Awarded Vendor Awarded 
Amount 

Community Safety Building - Ashton Mechanical Ltd. $465,071 
Emergency Power Upgrades 

Cab and Chassis - Model 548 Peterbilt Pacific Inc. 221,540 
(One Tandem Axle) Truck 2025 

lnclusionary Zoning and Density Urban Systems Ltd . 93,066 
Bonusing Framework: Financial 
Feasibility Assessment 

Works Yard Replacement Project Kasian Architecture and 453,787 
Phase 1 - Design Review Interior Design 
Services 

City Hall and City Hall Annex Heatherbrae Builders Co. 475,880 
Security Upgrades Ltd. 

Corporate Leadership Training Citizencentric Consulting 350,100 
Program (3 year term) Inc. 

Geospatial and Digital Twin ESRI Canada Ltd . 157,355 
Strategy 

Supply and Delivery of One (1) Greenpower Motor 190,538 
Fully Electric Wheelchair Company Inc. 
Accessible Bus 

Community Public Engagement Social Pinpoint Software 113,448 
Platform License (4 year term) Inc. 

Steveston Martial Arts Centre - Scott Special Projects 653,451 
Roof Beam Remediation Ltd. 

Richmond Animal Shelter Edifice Construction Inc. 211,914 
Flooring Upgrades 

Britannia Shipyards - Building Scott Special Projects 6,669,500 
Envelope and Structural Ltd. 
Renewals 

Services to Secure Historical Charlemain Productions 91,679 
Objects in the Britannia Shipyard Ltd . 
Building 

Fire Hall No.5 Mechanical Ashton Mechanical Ltd. 648,352 
Systems Renewals 

Service Catalogue and KPI KPMG LLP 80,000 
Development 

Attachment 4 

Department 

Facilities and 
Project 
Development 

Public Works 

Housing Office 

Facilities and 
Project 
Development 

Facilities and 
Project 
Development 

Human 
Resources 

Information 
Technology 

Public Works 

Corp 
Communications 
& Marketing 

Facilities and 
Project 
Development 

Facilities and 
Project 
Development 

Facilities and 
Project 
Development 

Arts, Cultural & 
Heritage 
Administration 

Facilities and 
Project 
Development 

Finance 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 
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A ttachment 4 

Contract Awards Greater than $75,000 (continued) 
January 1st to March 31 st, 2025 

Description Awarded Vendor Awarded Department 
Amount 

Feature Manipulation Engine Safe Software Inc. 130,000 Information 
(FME) Server and FME Desktop Technology 
Maintenance and Support 
Renewal Contract (4 year term) 

Supply and Del ivery of One (1) Finning (Canada) 312,620 Public Works 
Compact Radius Excavator 

Solution Support for Oracle Novamodus Solutions 75,000 Information 
Enterprise Performance Inc. Technology 
Management (EPM) 
Implementation 

Amanda Annual Support and Granicus LLC 130,471 Information 
Maintenance Contract Renewal Technology 
2025 

Works Yard Electrical Distribution PCL Constructors 414,121 Facilities and 
and Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Westcoast Inc. Project 
Installation Development 

Supply and Delivery of One (1) PSE Equipment Ltd . 75,389 Public Works 
Four (4) Ton Hot Box mounted on 
a Trailer 

Supply and Delivery of One (1) Greenpower Motor 293,294 Publ ic Works 
Fully Electric Bus Company Inc. 

Pay Parking Meter and Mobile Imperial Parking Canada 144,000 Community 
Payment Service Corporation (Impark) Bylaws 

Tent and Supply Rentals for Elite Tents & Events Ltd . 209,447 Arts, Cultural & 
Various Events and Festivals (2 Cascade Tents Inc. Heritage 
year term) Administration 

Street Light LED Upgrade Westburne Rexel Group 229,156 Engineering 
Program 

Decorative LED Luminaires for Wesco Distribution 107,797 Engineering 
the Street Light LED Upgrade Canada LP 
Program 

Development Coordinated Anderson Creek Site 80,149 Engineering 
Drainage Works to Improve Developing Ltd. 
Laneway Drainage 

Supply and Delivery of Two (2) Open Road Toyota 99,424 Public Works 
Four-Cylinder Hybrid Minivans Richmond 

Data Center Server Refresh CDW Canada 232,501 Information 
Including Support and Technology 
Maintenance - Dell Server 

Nature-Based Flood Protection Kerr Wood Leidel 149,463 Engineering 
Solutions Assessment Associates Limited 
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Attachment 4 

Contract Awards Greater than $75,000 (continued) 
January 15lto March 31 st, 2025 

Description Awarded Vendor Awarded Department 
Amount 

Seepage Assessment and WSP Canada Inc. 92 ,105 Engineering 
Groundwater Management Plan 

IT Resiliency Assessment KPMG LLP 80,000 Finance 

MRN & non-MRN - Asphaltic 1166618 B.C. OBA Save 5,494,071 Engineering 
Concrete Paving Program 2025 On Blacktop 

Virtualized Server Infrastructure - Long View Systems 101,647 Information 
VMWare Service License Technology 
Upgrades and Support 2025 
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City of 
Richmond 

Report to Committee 

To: Date: May 7, 2025 

From: 

Finance Committee 

Jerry Chong File: 01-0375-01/2025-Vol 
General Manager, Finance and Corporate 
Services 

Re: 2024 Annual Report and 2024 Annual Report Highlights 

Staff Recommendation 

01 

That the reports titled, "2024 Annual Report" and "2024 Annual Report - Highlights" be 
approved and posted on the City' s website. 

Jerry Chong 
General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services 
(604-276-4064) 

Att. 2 

REPORT CONCURRENCE 

CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER 

~ 
SENIOR STAFF REPORT REVIEW 

APPROVED BY CAO 

<;:j./~ ' 

INITIALS: 

af 
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Staff Report 

Origin 

Pursuant to Section 98 of the Community Charter, before June 301
\ in each year, a Council must: 

a) Prepare an annual rep01i 

b) Make the repo1i available for public inspection 

c) Have the rep01i available for public inspection at a Council or other public meeting 

This report supports Council's Strategic Plan 2022-2026 Focus Area #4 Responsible Financial 
Management and Governance: 

Responsible financial management and efficient use of public resources to meet the needs 
of the community. 

4.1 Ensure effective financial planning to support a sustainable future for the City. 

4.3 Foster community trust through open, transparent and accountable budgeting 
practices and processes. 

Analysis 

The City of Richmond's annual report fonnally presents the audited financial statements and 
other relevant financial, economic and demographic indicators to the public. The rep01i also 
highlights many of the City's significant achievements and milestones from 2024. 

Two versions of the Annual Report are produced each year in order to reach the different 
audiences interested in this information. The comprehensive 2024 Annual Rep01i meets all 
legislative requirements for financial repo1iing as required under the Community Charter for 
British Columbia's local governments. This version will be publicly available through the City's 
website and printed only upon request. The comprehensive version includes the City's audited 
consolidated financial statements; the City's corporate objectives and success indicators, as 
identified through Council's Strategic Plan; and a listing of permissive exemptions. In addition to 
the statutorily required information, the comprehensive version provides information on the 
City's milestones from 2024, including awards and achievements and a variety of key corporate 
financial and community demographic statistical data for the year. 

For a broader audience, the City also produces a condensed financial rep01iing docwnent known 
as the 2024 Annual Rep01i - Highlights. This sh01ier version, which is designed to be accessible 
and easily understandable for a general audience, provides information about the City of 
Richmond, its services, highlights from 2024 and the City's financial condition. In order to 
support sustainable practices, the condensed version is available through the City's website and 
distribution will be done electronically. There will be limited printed copies for presentation 
purposes and to fulfill statutory obligations. 

8049162 
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The City will again submit both reports to the Government Finance Officers Association 
(GFOA) for consideration in their annual awards program. The 2023 reports received the GFOA 
Canadian Award for Financial Reporting and the Outstanding Achievement in Popular Financial 
Repo11ing Award for the 22nd and 15th successive year respectively. 

The rep011s are produced entirely in house through the joint efforts of the Finance Depmtment 
and the Corporate Communications and Marketing Depa11ment, with design by the in-house 
Production Centre team. The 2024 reports again feature photos from City of Richmond 
employees who were invited to submit images to showcase their city, and recognize the talent 
and contributions of staff outside their day-to-day work enviromnents. 

Financial Impact 

None. 

Conclusion 

The City of Richmond 2024 Annual Rep011 and the 2024 Annual Report - Highlights satisfy the 
Community Charter requirements for financial reporting and are imp011ant instruments in 
ensuring public transparency and accountability for the management of City finances. The 
rep011s also provide useful information on the City's achievements and milestones during the 
2024 fiscal year. 

M~ hffig 
Director, Finance 
(604-276-4137) 

Att. 1: 2024 Annual Report 
2: 2024 Annual Report- Highlights 

8049162 

Clay Adams 
Director, Corporate Communications and 
Marketing 
(604-276-4399) 
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Government Finance Officers Association

Canadian Award 
for

Financial Reporting

Presented to

City of Richmond 

British Columbia

For its Annual

Financial Report
for the Year Ended

December 31, 2023

Executive Director/CEO
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KPMG LLP 
PO Box 10426 777 Dunsmuir Street 
Vancouver BC V7Y 1K3 
Canada
Telephone 604 691 3000 
Fax 604 691 3031 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Mayor and Council of the City of Richmond 

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the City of Richmond (the “City”), which 
comprise: 

the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024 

the consolidated statement of operations for the year then ended 

the consolidated statement of changes in net financial assets for the year then ended 

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies 

(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of the City as at December 31, 2024, and its consolidated results of 
operations, its consolidated changes in net financial assets and its consolidated cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our auditor’s report.  

We are independent of the City in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
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CITY OF RICHMOND
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
(Expressed in thousands of dollars) 

December 31, 2024, with comparative information for 2023 

  2024 2023 

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 199,381 $ 321,479 
Investments (note 4) 1,590,310 1,380,383 
Investment in Lulu Island Energy Company (“LIEC”) (note 5) 39,855 37,098 
Accrued interest receivable 22,681 26,614 
Accounts receivable (note 6) 45,887 35,067 
Taxes receivable 27,123 20,533 
Development fees receivable 18,084 20,299 
Debt reserve fund - deposits (note 7) 960 1,468 
  1,944,281 1,842,941 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  125,784 103,234
Asset retirement obligations (note 8) 11,120 11,893 
Post-employment benefits (note 9) 37,397 37,881
Development cost charges (note 10) 226,012 241,634 
Deposits and holdbacks (note 11) 161,822 148,738 
Deferred revenue (note 12) 80,586  75,357 
Debt, net of sinking fund deposits (note 13) 89,092 98,629 
  731,813  717,366

Net financial assets 1,212,468  1,125,575

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible capital assets (note 14) 2,840,927 2,694,902 
Inventory of materials and supplies 5,759 6,146 
Prepaid expenses 5,393 4,909 
  2,852,079 2,705,957 

Accumulated surplus (note 15) $ 4,064,547  $ 3,831,532

Contingent demand notes (note 7) 
Contingent assets and contractual rights (note 18) 
Commitments and contingencies (note 19) 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

Approved on behalf of Council: 

  
General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services 
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 195,000  205,000  215,000  225,000  235,000  245,000

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Median age 42.1 42.3 41.9 42.1 40.9

13%

67%

18%

2%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

  0 to 14 years

  15 to 64 years

  65 to 84 years

  85 years and over
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English, 46%

Chinese, 36%

Other languages,
14%

Punjabi, 2%
Tagalog, 2%

Canadian born
36%

Immigrated 
before 1991

13%

Immigrated
1991-2000

19%

Immigrated
2001-2010

15%

Immigrated  
2011-2021

13%

Non-
permanent 
residents

4%
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4%

6%

6%

15%

23%

46%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

Apprenticeship or trades certificate or diploma

University certificate or diploma below the bachelor level

No certificate, diploma or degree

College, CEGEP or other non-university certificate or diploma

High school certificate or equivalent

University certificate, diploma or degree at bachelor's level or above

1%

1%

3%

4%

6%

10%

10%

13%

22%

30%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Natural resources, agriculture and related production

Management

Manufacturing and utilities

Art, culture, recreation, sport

Health

Natural and applied sciences and related

Education, law and social, community and government

Trades, transport, equipment operators and related

Business, finance, administration

Sales and service
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1,233

1,591

1,463

1,036

1,323

2,400

1,748

2,036

1,806

2,684

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Apartment 1,246 863 372 1,321 1,313 1,345 970 271 1,025 136

Single Family* 368 368 404 284 364 194 201 177 224 185

Townhouse 170 254 196 107 134 150 187 78 45 105

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

2,000

1,485

972

1,712
1,811

1,689

1,358

526

426

1,784

1,294
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Industrial ($000) $80,884 $29,115 $65,098 $62,171 $66,189 $76,282 $83,217 $149,731 $104,140 $143,978

Commercial ($000) $191,303 $181,952 $90,927 $116,709 $255,823 $86,398 $179,870 $80,734 $92,443 $290,172

Residential ($000) $711,202 $504,669 $553,079 $700,419 $659,121 $554,465 $456,015 $696,151 $554,520 $892,253

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000
1,326,403

983,389

715,736 709,104

879,299

981,133

717,145 719,102

926,616

751,103

14,317

14,245

13,574

13,792

13,481

0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000

2024

2023

2022

2021

2020

Number of valid business licences
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

New Capital $89,290 $67,297 $44,014 $54,702 $103,419

Replacement Capital $69,587 $143,263 $51,760 $101,708 $172,774

Other Capital $14,502 $12,403 $13,799 $11,176 $38,341

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

173,379

222,963

109,573

167,586

Equipment program
5%

Infrastructure
program

30%

Land and
parks program

21%

Building program
44%
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City of Richmond
50%

Province of BC 
(School)

38%

BC Assessment
1%

TransLink
9%

Metro Vancouver
2%

27,604

47,140

96,419

105,287

116,532

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

2020* 2021 2022 2023 2024
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$0 $2,500,000 $5,000,000 $7,500,000 $10,000,000

South Coast BC Transportation Authority

RC (South) Inc

Sun Life Assurance Co of Canada

Vanprop Investments Ltd

Farrell Estates Ltd

LaFarge Canada Inc

Bontebok Holdings Ltd

Montrose Industries Ltd

YVR Tenants

Port Authority Tenants
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$104
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Short-term
notes and
deposits

Government
and

Government
Guaranteed

Bonds

Municipal
Finance

Authority Bonds
Bank Bonds

Total
investments

2023 $443,418 $599,013 $12,466 $325,486 $1,380,383

2024 $489,091 $755,104 $12,469 $333,646 $1,590,310

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000
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Government Finance Officers Association

Award for
Outstanding

Achievement in
Popular Annual
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To: 

From: 

City of 
Richmond 

Finance Committee 

Mike Ching, CPA, CMA 
Director, Finance 

Report to Committee 

Date: May 5, 2025 

File: 03-0975-01 /2025-Vol 
01 

Re: Active Capital Projects Financial Update-1st Quarter March 31, 2025 

Staff Recommendation 

That the staff report titled, "Active Capital Projects Financial Update - 1st Quarter March 31, 
2025", dated May 5, 2025 from the Director, Finance, be received for infonnation. 

Mike Ching, CPA, CMA 
Director, Finance 
(604-276-4137) 

Att. 1 

REPORT CONCURRENCE 

ROUTED To: CONCURRENCE CONCURRENCE 

Arts, Culture & Heritage Admin 0 RCMP 0 
Climate & Environment 0 Real Estate Services 0 
Engineering 0 Parks, Recreation & Culture Admin 0 
Facility Services & Project Development 0 Transportation 0 
Fire Administration 0 
Information Technology 0 CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER 
Parks Services 0 

~ Public Works 0 

SENIOR STAFF REPORT REVIEW INITIALS: APPROVED BY CAO 

af <;;jf_~ . 
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Staff Report 

Origin 

The Active Capital Projects Financial Update for the 1st Quarter ended March 31, 2025 is 
provided to the Finance Committee for infonnation. 

This report suppo1is Council's Strategic Plan 2022-2026 Focus Area #4 Responsible Financial 
Management and Governance: 

Responsible financial management and efficient use of public resources to meet the needs 
of the community. 

4.3 Foster community trust through open, transparent and accountable budgeting 
practices and processes. 

Analysis 

ACTIVE CAPITAL PROJECT DEFINITION 

Council approves the budget for each capital project before its initiation. For the purposes of this 
rep01i, a capital project is considered active if it falls within any of the stages outlined in Figure 
1. 

Figure 1: Capital Project Completion Stages 

Capital projects include amounts set aside for land acquisition where Council approval is 
required for each specific land acquisition transaction. 

8037659 
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 

The unaudited actual capital expenditures are primarily reported based on the receipt of invoices. 
As a result, there may be a timing difference between when costs are incurred and when they are 
reported. 

As of March 31, 2025, the approved budget for all active capital projects excluding the 
contingent external contribution project was $1,039.0M of which $496.2M, or 47.8%, has 
already been spent or contractually committed. Any unspent budget for each active capital 
project will remain allocated until the project is closed. 

Table 1 highlights the capital financial information by program. The total budgets for the 
Building and Infrastructure Programs are $460.4M and $351. lM, respectively, representing 
78.1 % of the overall capital budget. As the active capital projects progress, additional 
expenditures and commitments will arise in future periods, which will be covered by the 
remaining budget. As of March 31, 2025, the total actual expenditures for active capital projects 
amounted to $393.lM. 

Table 1: Capital Financial Information by Program as of March 31, 2025 (in '000s) 

Program 
Building 
Infrastructure 
Land 
Parks 
Equipment 
Information Technology 

Total 

Budget 
$460,419 

351,113 
103,386 
50,859 
54,479 
18,767 

$1,039,023 

Actual 
Expenditures 

$164,495 
144,737 
32,786 
32,180 
13,290 
5,650 

$393,138 

Commitments 
$76,205 

17,942 

2,369 
5,102 
1,443 

$103,061 

Remain ing 
Budget 

$219,719 
188,434 
70,600 
16,310 
36,087 
11 ,674 

$542,824 

Figure 2: Capital Financial Information by Plan Vear as of March 31, 2025 

600 

500 

400 
Ill 
C 
~ 300 

~ 200 
100 

■ 1111.. 
2025 2024 2023 2022 & older 

■ Budget ■ Life to Date Actual Expenditures ■ Commitments 
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Included in capital projects with Plan 
Years 2022 and prior are the Steveston 
Community Centre and Library and 
the Steveston Highway Multi-Use 
Pathway (Mortfield Gate to No. 2 
Road) projects, both of which are in 
the construction phase, Steveston 
Highway Multi-Use Pathway (Shell 
Road to M01ifield Gate) is 
substantially completed, and the real 
estate acquisition projects (2021 to 
2022) are anticipated to be completed 
within this year. 
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY CAPITAL PROGRAM 

Building Program 

52% 

Figure 3: Life-to-Date Actual Expenditures 

and Commitments Compared to Budget 

• Total approved budget for the Building Program 
is $460.4M, of which $240.7M has already been 
spent or contractually committed. 

• Commitments as of March 31, 2025 were 
$76.2M. 

• Cunent year capital expenditures were $7.6M. 

Key capital projects are highlighted in Table 2, with project status updates provided in 
Attachment 1. 

Table 2: Key Capital Project Highlights - Building Program as of March 31, 2025 (in '000s) 

Actual Remaining 
Project Name Budget Expenditures Commitments Budget 
Steveston Community Centre and 

$95,000 $23,790 $51,483 $19,727 
Library (2021) 
Works Yard Replacement Project-

100,000 5,829 5,567 88,604 
Phase 1 (2023 & 2024) 
Bowling Green Community Activity 

5,300 2,966 1,850 484 Centre (2018) 
Fire Hall No. 5 System Renewals (2023) 700 55 447 198 
Steveston and South Arm Outdoor Pool 

4,300 35 15 4,250 
Renewals (2024) 
West Richmond Pavilion (2024) 19,850 45 1,189 18,616 

Steveston Community Centre and Library Financial Update 
Actual expenditures totaled $23.8M, primarily spent on site preparation, design services and 
construction activities. The total commitments as of March 31, 2025 were $5 l.5M, with $48.9M 
related to the constrnction management contract for the new facility, on-site and off-site civil 
work, and landscaping. 

Works Yard Replacement Project - Phase 1 Financial Update 
A total of $100.0M has been approved for the Works Yard Replacement Phase 1 project to date. 
The actual expenditures were $5.8M, including the initial enviromnental assessments, operations 
centre set up, office relocations, community engagements and demolition of old trailers. As of 
March 31, 2025, commitments were $5.6M for space planning, site investigations, architectural 
services, and a constrnction manager for pre-constrnction services. 

West Richmond Pavilion Financial Update 
This project is currently at the conceptual design stage. The total commitments as of March 31, 
2025 were $1.2M related to the design services and contract administration. 

8037659 
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Infrastructure Program 

46% 
Budget 

Figure 4: Life-to-Date Actual Expenditures 
and Commitments Compared to Budget 

- 5 -

• Within the Infrastructure Program, the actual 
expenditures and commitments compared to 
budget for each sub-program is broken down as 
follows: 

o Roads Program - 62% 
o Water Program-43% 
o Flood Protection Program - 33% 
o Sanitary Sewer Program -29% 

• Commitments as of March 31 , 2025 were 
$17.9M. 

• Current year capital expenditures were $5. 7M. 

Key capital projects are highlighted in Table 3, with project status updates provided in 
Attachment 1. 

Table 3: Key Capital Project Highlights - Infrastructure Program as of March 31, 2025 (in '000s) 

Actual Remaining 
Project Name Budget Expenditures Commitments Budget 
Active Transportation Improvement 

$1,517 $942 $34 $541 Program (2022) 
Annual Asphalt Re-Paving Program 

6,309 6,309 (2025) 
Steveston Highway Multi-Use Pathway -
Phases 1 & 2: Shell Road to Mortfield 

11,500 8,070 1,885 1,545 Gate & Mortfield Gate to No. 2 Road 
(2019 & 2020) 
Steveston Highway Multi-Use Pathway, 

5,700 28 1,927 3,745 No 2 Road to Railway Avenue (2023) 
Burkeville Utility Improvements (2025) 3,000 3,000 
Canal Stabilization and Drainage and 

3,000 2,137 22 841 Irrigation Upgrades (2023) 
Disaster Mitigation and Adaptation Fund 

25,216 8,275 725 16,216 Infrastructure Upgrades (2020-2024) 
Invasive Species Management (2020, 

1,425 573 67 785 2022-2025) 
Laneway Drainage Upgrades (2025) 1,816 19 4 1,793 
Watermain Replacement Upgrades 

4,017 1,224 2,793 Program (2023) 

8037659 
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Parks Program 

68% 
Budget 

Figure 5: Life-to-Date Actual Expenditures 
and Commitments Compared to Budget 

- 6 -

• Total approved budget for the Parks Program 
is $50.9M, of which $34.5M has already been 
spent or contractually committed. 

• Commitments as of March 31, 2025 were 
$2.4M. 

• Current year capital expenditures were $0.6M. 

Key capital projects are highlighted in Table 4, with project status updates provided in 
Attachment 1. 

Table 4: Key Capital Project Highlights - Parks Program as of March 31, 2025 (in '000s) 

Project Name 
Brighouse Park Baseball Diamond 
Infield Upgrade (2024) 
Burkeville Neighbourhood Park 
Redevelopment (2024) 

Minoru Lakes Renewal: Phase 2 (2024) 

No. 3 Road Bark Park (2024) 

Steveston Community Park Playground 
Expansion (2023) 
South Dyke Trail Enhancements 
(around Crown Packaging) (2025) 

Equipment Program 

34% 
Budget 

Figure 6: Life-to-Date Actual Expenditures 

and Commitments Compared to Budget 

Budget 

$520 

600 

2,500 

385 

2,200 

400 

Actual 
Expenditures Commitments 

$153 

82 

298 

947 

$367 

81 

11 

1,104 

Remaining 
Budget 

$-

600 

2,337 

76 

149 

400 

• Total approved budget for Equipment Program is 
$54.5M, of which 42% of the Vehicle Program 
budget and 20% of Equipment Program budget 
have already been spent or contractually 
committed. 

• Commitments as of March 31, 2025 were $5 .lM. 
• Cunent year capital expenditures were $0.6M. 

Key capital projects are highlighted in Table 5, with project status updates provided in 
Attachment 1. 

8037659 
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Table 5: Key Capital Project Highlights - Equipment Program as of March 31, 2025 (in 'OOOs) 

Project Name 
Fire Vehicle Replacement Reserve 
Purchases (2021-2025) 
Vehicle and Equipment Reserve 
Purchases (Public Works and 
Corporate Fleet) (2022-2025) 
Public Safety Mobile Command and 
Communication Centre Vehicle 
(2024) 

Information Technology Program 

38% 
Budget 

Figure 7: Life-to-Date Actual Expenditures 
and Commitments Compared to Budget 

Budget 

$11,031 

14,836 

1,815 

Actual Remaining 
Expenditures Commitments Budget 

$- $- $11,031 

6,405 3,857 4,574 

1,815 

• Total approved budget for Information 
Technology Program is $18.8M, of which 
$7.lM have already been spent or 
contractually committed. 

• Commitments as of March 31, 2025 were 
$1.4M. 

• Current year capital expenditures were $0.2M. 

Key capital projects are highlighted in Table 6, with project status updates provided in 
Attachment 1. · 

Table 6: Key Capital Project Highlights - Information Technology Program as of March 31, 2025 (in 'OOOs) 

Project Name 
Document and Records Management 
System Modernization (2025) 
Budget Planning & Monitoring Software 
Solution (2019 & 2023) 
Permit Optimization Project (MyPermit) 
(2021 & 2024) 

Budget 

$3,440 

1,650 

2,916 

Actual Remaining 
Expenditures Commitments Budget 

$- $- $3,440 

631 

612 

80 

201 

939 

2,103 

CAPITAL BUDGET REALLOCATION 

Council Policy 3001 requires that changes to the Capital Budget be rep01ied to the Finance 
Committee. The following reallocations were recorded since September 30, 2024: 

Table 7: Budget Reallocation for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2025 (in 'OOOs) 

Funding Source 
Appropriated Surplus 

External Contribution1 

Project Name 
Oval West Waterfront Park - Phase 1 (2013) 
Public Works Infrastructure Advanced 
Design (2025) 

Amount 
$190 

150 

1 The grant was awarded by Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM) under the Community Emergency Preparedness 
Fund, Disaster Risk Reduction - Climate Adaptation funding sh·eam for the Flood Protection and Rain Gauge 
Monitoring Stations project. 

8037659 
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Table 7: Budget Reallocation for the.Quarter Ended March 31, 2025 (in '000s) - continued 

Funding Source 
Budget Planning & Monitoring Software 
Solution Phase 2 (2023) 

Traffic Signal Program (2020) 

Total Budget Reallocation 

Project Name 

Workforce Management (2016) 

Traffic Signal Power Backup System (UPS) 
(2024) 

CAPITAL PROJECTS CLOSED IN THE QUARTER 

Amount 

$100 

35 

$475 

The following capital projects were closed in the quaiier ended March 31, 2025. Any unspent 
funding will be returned to the original source ( e.g. Reserve Fund) for funding towards future 
projects. 

Table 8: Projects Closed in the Quarter Ended March 31, 2025 (in '000s) 

Project Name Plan Year Budget 
Strategic Land Acquisition 2017 $16,020 

Pilot Sewer Grease and Heat Recovery 2018 3,500 
Facility2 

Sanitary Facility Land Acquisition for Grease 2017 2,500 
Management2 

Parks Ageing Infrastructure Replacement 2020 590 
Program 
PeopleSoft Financial 9.2 Upgrade 2022 478 

ePlan Expansion and SSO Integration 2023 295 

Parks Ageing Infrastructure Replacement 2021 150 
Program 
Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL)/Global 2022 140 
Positioning System (GPS) Expansion 

Total $23,673 

Actuals 
$16,020 

3 

590 

Remaining 
Budget 

$-

3,497 

2,500 

233 245 

247 48 

150 

140 

$17,383 $6,290 

2 Both projects are cancelled and the funding is no longer needed as the Lulu Island Energy Company, the City's 
district energy utility corporation, is building the Sewer Heat Recovery Central Energy Plant at the River Parkway. 

CONTRIBUTED ASSETS 

Throughout the year, developers and third paiiies contribute assets to the City. The timing of the 
transfer of the contributed assets to the City is subject to the development and constmction 
progress of the private developers, which the City cannot asce1iain. 

As of March 31, 2025, $6.9M of contributed assets were recorded. These contributed assets are 
non-cash contributions and have no impact on the net operating surplus. Under the Public Sector 
Accounting Standai·ds, these are recorded as revenue at fair market value at the time of 
contribution and will be reflected in the financial statements in the annual surplus, with a 
corresponding increase to investment in tangible capital assets in accumulated surplus. 
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Financial Impact 

None. 

Conclusion 

- 9 -

This report provides financial information on the active capital projects that were previously 
approved by Council for the 1st quarter ended March 31, 2025. 

Jenny Ho, CPA, CGA 
Manager, Tangible Cap Assets 
(604-276-4223) 

JH:sx 

Att. 1: Highlights of Key Active Capital Projects 
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Highlights of Key Active Capital Projects 

Building Program 

The Building Program includes major building construction and renovation projects, as well as 
minor facility upgrades. 

Steveston Community Centre and Library (2021) 

Budget: $95.0M Expected Completion Date: Q4 2026 

Construction for the new, three-storey, 60,350 sq. ft. facility is progressing on-site, with the 
below-ground structure completed and the above-ground structure ongoing. The replacement 
facility includes a community centre with a double gymnasium, fitness centre, multipurpose 
rooms, gathering spaces, a shared community living room, and library with enhanced collections, 
children's and youth spaces, educational program rooms and space for quiet study. The detailed 
design will target Richmond's Enhanced Accessibility Design Guidelines and Technical 
Specifications, LEED Gold Certification, Rick Hansen Foundation Accessibility Ce1iification 
and Richmond's Circular Economy Principles and Criteria. 

A new park washroom will also be constructed to replace the existing washrooms servicing the 
splash park and Steveston Community Park Playground, which are cun-ently paii of the existing 
community centre building and are accessible from the Steveston Community Centre exterior. 

Works Yard Replacement Project-Phase 1 (2023 & 2024) 

Budget: $100.0M Expected Completion Date: Q4 2028 

The Works Yard is crucial for providing essential services, operations, emergency response, and 
disaster recovery to the community. Throughout its completion at the cun-ent site, it will remain 
fully operational, serving the community during construction. Phase 1 includes building an 
administration facility, parkade, demolishing existing facilities, and relocating staff. 

Bowling Green Community Activity Centre (2018) 

Budget: $5.3M Expected Completion Date: Q3 2025 

The new facility is cmTently under construction, with the installation of structural steel framing 
underway, marking a major milestone in the ve1iical construction phase. The single-storey 
replacement building will feature a spacious change room, a versatile multipurpose space for 
bigger events, a breezeway and an outdoor, covered viewing area with seating. These features 
will promote connectivity between the two lawn bowling greens, enhance natural ventilation 
throughout the space, and provide bowlers with a sheltered area to view the greens and gather 
during events. 
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Fire Hall No. 5 System Renewals (2023) 

Budget: $700K Expected Completion Date: Q4 2025 

Implementation of a new Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HV AC) system will be 
completed to meet the higher energy efficiency standards and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 
These works include the renewal and replacement of heat pumps, boilers, compressors, and 
water heaters. 

Steveston and South Arm Outdoor Pool Renewals (2024) 

Budget: $4.3M Expected Completion Date: Q2 2027 

The Steveston Outdoor Pool renewals involve roof replacement and mechanical system 
upgrades, as well as installation of shade structures over the bleachers and guard stations to 
enhance visitor safety and comfort. The South Ann Outdoor Pool renewals involve roof 
replacement, mechanical system upgrades, pool liner resealing and installation of shade 
structures to enhance visitor comfort. Construction will be carried out in phases during the off 
seasons (Fall and Winter) to reduce service disruptions to the outdoor pools. 

West Richmond Pavilion (2024) 

Budget: $19.9M Expected Completion Date: Q4 2027 

The West Richmond Pavilion project will be a new 10,830 sq. ft. community facility located in 
Hugh Boyd Community Parle It considers a new level of service in the park to support day-to­
day sport groups with change rooms, public washrooms, as well as multipurpose spaces, offices, 
and a viewing deck to support the needs of our growing community. West Richmond Pavilion 
will target Rick Hansen Foundation Accessibility Certification and will be the first City of 
Richmond civic building designed to Passive House Standards. 

Infrastructure Program 

Roads 

Active Transportation Improvement Program (2022) 

Budget: $I.SM Expected Completion Date: Q4 2025 

As part of the City's Active Transportation Program, upcoming upgrades include the installation 
of a special crosswalk and widening of the existing sidewalk along Francis Road between 
McCutcheon Place and Schaeffer Gate to improve the Midtown Neighbourhood Bike Route and 
improvements to the existing multi-use pathway on Garden City Road from Williams Road to 
Francis Road. As of Ql 2025, the multi-use pathway on Garden City Road, between Williams 
Road and Francis Road, has been completed. The pedestrian crossing enhancement on Francis 
Road, between McCutcheon Place and Schaefer Gate, will begin construction in Q2 2025. 
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Annual Asphalt Re-Paving Program (2025) 

Budget: $6.3M Expected Completion Date: Q4 2025 

This program upgrades the City's Major Road Network and Non-Major Road Network as part of 
the City's Infrastrncture Replacement Strategy and Pavement Management System. The 2025 work 
was awarded in Q 1 2025 and will include the use of reclaimed asphalt pavement (RAP). Priority 
paving locations will be completed by the end of Q4 2025. 

Steveston Highway Multi-Use Pathway- Phases 1 & 2: Shell Road to Mortfield Gate & 
Mortfield Gate to No. 2 Road (2019 & 2020) 

Budget: $11.5M Expected Completion Date: Q2 2025 

This project includes the provision of a new paved multi-use pathway along the south side of 
Steveston Highway between Shell Road to Mortfield Gate (Phase 1) and Mortfield Gate to No. 2 
Road (Phase 2), along with the installation of new curbing, boulevard space, and street and path 
lighting upgrades. As of Ql 2025, constrnction is complete from Shell Road to Gilbert Road and 
this section of the multi-use pathway is open to the public. Ongoing constrnction works from 
Gilbert Road to No. 2 Road will continue into Q2 2025. 

Steveston Highway Multi-Use Pathway Phase 3 -No. 2 Road to Railway Avenue (2023) 

Budget: $5.7M 
Expected Completion Date: Q4 2025 

This project includes the provision of a new paved multi-use pathway along the south side of 
Steveston Highway between No. 2 Road and Railway Avenue, including the installation of new 
curbing, boulevard space, and street and path lighting upgrades. Constrnction started in Ql 2025 
and will be completed before the end of 2025. 

Flood Protection 

Burkeville Utility Improvements (2025) 

Budget: $3.0M Expected Completion Date: Q4 2025 

This project consists of upgrading the drainage network, sanitary sewers, and watennains in the 
Burkeville area and will reduce local flood risks by increasing the City's storm system capacity. 
The phasing constrnction schedule, designed to prioritize servicing concerns and reduce impacts 
to the community, has entered its latest phase of constrnction in the Lancaster Crescent area as of 
Ql 2025. 

Canal Stabilization and Drainage and Irrigation Upgrades (2023) 

Budget: $3.0M Expected Completion Date: Q4 2025 
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The City's drainage infrastructure network routinely goes through condition assessments, where 
canals and ditches are identified as a priority location for bank stabilization. The City has identified 
priority locations, and the scope of work will include the design and construction of canal 
stabilization works for Sidaway Road, between Blundell Road and Westminster Highway, and No. 
7 Road, from Cambie Road to 570 meters south, with construction cun-ently underway on Sidaway 
Road as of Ql 2025 and construction at No. 7 Road will begin upon its completion. 

Disaster Mitigation and Adaptation Fund Infrastructure Upgrades (2020-2024) 

Budget: $25.2M Expected Completion Date: Q4 2027 

The City secured $13.8 million from the Federal Government though the Disaster Mitigation and 
Adaptation Fund Grant to contribute towards the Flood Protection Program. This project 
includes the upgrades of various drainage pump stations and diking upgrades, with the design of 
the North Dike Upgrades between No. 2 Road and Lynas Lane, and the No. 9 Road Drainage 
Pump Stations cun-ently underway. 

Invasive Species Management (2020, 2022-2025) 

Budget: $1.4M Expected Completion Date: Ongoing 

To reduce the spread of invasive species and mitigate impacts of the Richmond's flood 
protection system, the City has implemented an integrated management approach. Among the 
invasive and aggressive species targeted are parrot's feather, Chafer beetle, and various 
knotweed species, all of which are known to adversely affect local infrastructure and 
biodiversity. 

Laneway Drainage Upgrades (2025) 

Budget: $1.8M Expected Completion Date: Q3 2025 

In order to resolve laneway drainage issues, the City has implemented a program to install 
drainage systems and upgrade road structures to laneways each year. As of Q 1 2025, the 
drainage and paving improvements along the laneway east of Seagrave Road (Seacote 
Neighbourhood) are underway with expected completion in Q2 2025, after which construction 
will begin on the laneway west of Shell Road (Shelmont Neighbourhood). 

Water 

Watermain Replacement Upgrades Program (2023) 

Budget: $4.0M Expected Completion Date: Q 1 2026 

This program replaces and upsizes ageing watermains at the end of their service life in line with 
the City's Ageing Infrastructure Renewal Strategy. Construction includes the installation of new 
watennains at various locations, and currently construction is underway for the Seacote 
Neighbourhood Watermain Replacement. 
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Parks Program 

The Parks program includes the development and replacement of parks, trails, community 
gardens and natural areas in Richmond. 

Brighouse Park Baseball Diamond Infield Upgrade (2024) 

Budget: $520K Expected Completion Date: Q2 2025 

Construction to upgrade the baseball infield to synthetic turf with drainage system improvements 
continued to progress amidst slight inclement weather delays during this quarter. Remaining 
works include finishing touches on softscape, backstop/fencing, and miscellaneous paving in 
transitional areas. 

Burkeville Neighbourhood Park Redevelopment (2024) 

Budget: $600K Expected Completion Date: Q3 2026 

Detailed design is currently underway to outline detailed work scope. Once ready, procurement 
for construction services will follow, with construction anticipated to commence between Q3 and 
Q4 2025. 

Minoru Lakes Renewal: Phase 2 (2024) 

Budget: $2.5M Expected Completion Date: Q4 2026 

Water Sustainability Act (WSA) approval has been received, and detailed design is nearing 
completion, with various preliminary site preparation done during Q 1 2025. A Request for 
Proposal (RFP) for construction services is tentatively scheduled for Q2 2025, with construction 
targeted to staii in Q3 2025. 

No. 3 Road Bark Park (2024) 

Budget: $385K Expected Completion Date: Q2 2025 

Based on Council's approval, safety upgrades at the No. 3 Road Bark Park has commenced since 
Q3 2024, which included the creation of a new multi-use pathway (MUP), fencing and gate 
installation, associated signage and landscaping improvements. After approval received from the 
Inspector of Dykes (IOD ), the last section of gate and fencing has started at both ends of the park, 
with the new MUP temporarily opened for public use. 

Steveston Community Park Playground Expansion (2023) 

Budget: $2.2M Expected Completion Date: Q3 2025 
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Since Q3 2024, construction has continued with sitework, subsurface utilities, irrigation and 
rough grading, concrete foundations, concrete pathways and playground edging completed. 
Remaining works include asphalt paving, hillside stairs, park shelter, rubberized safety surfacing, 
installation of all playground equipment, and final landscaping. 

South Dike Trail Enhancements (around Crown Packaging) (2025) 

Budget: $400K Expected Completion Date: Ongoing 

Following Council approval of the proposed enhancements to the trail in Ql 2025, detailed 
design is currently underway to outline detailed work scope, including further analysis of 
environmental and permitting requirements along with an Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) 
application. Pending all pennits and ALC approval, procurement for construction services will 
immediately follow, and the estimated construction timeline will be established. 

Land Program 

Strategic Real Estate Acquisition (2021-2025) 

Budget: $103.4M Expected Completion Date: Ongoing 

Capital projects include amounts set aside for potential real estate acquisition as per the Council 
Approved Strategic Real Estate Investment Plan. Council approval is required for each real estate 
acquisition transaction. 

Equipment Program 

The Equipment Program includes machinery and vehicles for Richmond Fire Rescue, Public 
Works and other miscellaneous equipment. 

Fire Vehicle Replacement Reserve Purchases (2021-2025) 

Budget: $1 l.0M Expected Completion Date: Ongoing 

The Fire Vehicle Replacement Reserve Purchases projects in Plan Year 2021 to 2025 include 
outstanding acquisition of four fire engines. The project team is finalizing fire engine 
specifications and preparing to move forward with the purchase plan. 

Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Purchases (Public Works and Corporate Fleet) (2022-2025) 

Budget: $14.8M Expected Completion Date: Ongoing 

The 2022 to 2025 fleet vehicle and equipment projects involve the estimated acquisition of over 
148 vehicles and equipment that have been identified for replacement. As of Ql 2025, 90 units 
have arrived, 18 units are on order, and 40 units are in different stages of the evaluation process. 
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Public Safety Mobile Command and Communication Centre Vehicle (2024) 

Budget: $1.8M Expected Completion Date: Q4 2025 

The project team is finalising the Request for Proposal (RFP), which will then be sent out to the 
market. 

Information Technology 

Document and Records Management System Modernization (2025) 

Budget: $3.4M Expected Completion Date: Q4 2027 

The City's Document and Records Management System has been in use for over 25 years and has 
remained relatively unchanged. With newer operating systems and the transition to cloud-based 
technologies, updates are underway to supp01i a modem environment, enhance productivity, and 
staff satisfaction, with the Request for Proposal to select a product and implementation supplier 
underway. 

Budget Plam1ing & Monitoring Software Solution (2019 & 2023) 

Budget: $1. 7M Expected Completion Date: Q4 2025 

The City is implementing a modern solution seamlessly integrated with the Financial and Payroll 
systems to enhance budget scenario planning and modelling, supporting the creation, submission, 
and approval of capital, operating and five-year budget requirements. This new system replaces a 
legacy application that served for over 25 years and is scheduled to be implemented for the 2026 
budget process. 

Pennit Optimization Project (MyPennit) (2021 & 2024) 

Budget: $2.9M Expected Completion Date: Q4 2027 

MyPennit is a multi-phased initiative aimed at fully digitizing and enabling customer self-service 
for development and building pe1mits. Phase 1 of the MyPennit project has streamlined the 
permitting process for simple permit types, including sprinklers, plumbing and gas trades 
permits, and servicing agreements through an online self-service portal option. Phase 2 includes 
tree and demolition permits, which are scheduled to go live on the My Permit Portal in June 
2025. 

8037659 

FIN - 155



City of 
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Re: Lulu Island Energy Company-2025 1st Quarter Financial Information 

Staff Recommendation 

That the Lulu Island Energy Company rep01i titled "Lulu Island Energy Company - 2025 1st 
Quarter Financial Infonnation", dated April 21, 2025, from the Chief Executive Officer and 
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Report 

DATE: April 21, 2025 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Jerry Chong, CPA, CA, Chief Financial Officer 

A Lululsland ""'V ENERGY COMPANY 

6911 NO. 3 ROAD 
RICHMOND, BC V6Y 2C1 

Re: Lulu Island Energy Company- 20251 st Quarter Financial Information 

Staff Recommendation 

That the 1st Quarter Financial Infonnation as presented in the rep01i titled "Lulu Island Energy 
Company - 2025 1st Quarter Financial Information", dated April 21, 2025, be approved. 

Background 

Lulu Island Energy Company (LIEC), a corporation wholly-owned by the City of Richmond, 
was established to provide district energy services on behalf of the City. Information regarding 
LIEC's district energy utility (DEU) operations can be found in Attachment 1. All capital and 
operating costs are recovered through revenues from user fees, ensuring the business is 
financially sustainable. City Council is the regulator and thus set customer rates. 

This repo1i provides pre-audited financial infonnation to the Board of Directors and LIEC's 

shareholder, represented by Richmond City Council. 

Analysis 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS). LIEC's Ql financial information (unaudited) consists of the interim 
statement of financial position as of March 31 , 2025 (Attachment 2) and the interim income 
statement for the period ended March 31 , 2025 (Attachment 3). Year-to-date budget-to-actual 
comparison is shown in Attachment 4. 

Interim Statement of Financial Position 

The interim statement of financial position provides a summary of assets, liabilities, and 
shareholder' s equity. 

8053390 

FIN - 157



April 21, 2025 - 2 -

Current assets increased by $422,105 from December 31, 2024, mainly due to cash generated 
from operations. 

Accounts receivable primarily reflects accruals for the first quarter's meter billings, as well as 
GST receivable and amounts due from related parties. The decrease from December 31, 2024 is 
due to the collection of one outstanding developer's contribution, which is reflected in the 
increase in cash balance. 

The total liabilities of $45,744,853 include outstanding invoices, deferred developer 
contributions and City Centre District Energy Utility (CCDEU) Project Agreement liabilities. 
Deferred developer contributions and CCDEU Project Agreement liabilities comprise the 
majority of the liabilities as they were the primary source of funding for new infrastructure. 

Shareholder's equity reflects the net worth of the company, calculated as total assets minus the 
total liabilities. As of March 31, 2025, LIEC's shareholder equity was $40,505,106, representing 
a 2 % increase from December 31, 2024. 

Interim Income Statement and Budget Variance 

Revenues 

The metered billings reflect energy sales of the ADEU and CCDEU service areas 1• The year-to­
date metered billing revenue was $738,883 from ADEU, and $1,992,607 from CCDEU. Overall, 
2025 year-to-date metered billing revenue grew by 15% to $2,731,490 (Ql 2024 - $2,365,568). 
This increase was due to new building connections, additional energy use from buildings that 
were not fully occupied in the prior year, and the approved 2025 customer rates. The revenue 
was slightly higher than the budget. 

Cost of Sales 

The cost of sales are the accumulated total expenses attributable to the metered billing revenue, 
which includes contract services, utilities ( electricity and natural gas), and depreciation expenses. 
Contract expenses increased by $174,030 to $674,383 (Ql 2024- $500,353) due to additional 
operations and maintenance requirements as a result of additional on-site low carbon energy 
plants (LCEP). The air-source heat pumps used by LCEPs reduce carbon emission compared to 
natural gas boilers, but the equipment is more complex and requires more frequent maintenance. 
Additionally, on-site energy plants have higher staffing requirements than centralized interim 
energy centres. Contract expenses were 11 % below budget due to fewer unplanned maintenance 
than anticipated. 

Compared to Ql 2024, utility costs increased by $209,147 to $840,217 (Ql 2024 $631,070), 
primarily due to the additional energy usage as a result of greater heating demand due to weather 
conditions, a new building connection, and higher demand from connection that were not fully 
occupied in the prior year. Utility costs were 5% below the budget, reflecting normal variability 
in winter conditions and customer demand. Depreciation expense increased compared to Q 1 

1 Note that OVDEU was now combined under the CCDEU service area. 
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2024 due to the addition of new capital assets placed in service. However, depreciation remained 
below budget as a result of timing differences in the in-service dates of certain assets. 

The gross margin decreased 8% from prior year due to the overall growth of the on-site LCEPs. 
On-site LCEPs are used as interim strategy to secure connections to off-site centralized district 
energy infrastructure in future while delivering low carbon energy to customers from the day 
one. LCEPs use air-source heat pumps, equipment that is more complex and requires more 
frequent maintenance. Additionally, on-site energy plants have higher staffing requirements than 
centralized interim energy centres. As additional LCEPs come online, a continued downward 
trend in gross margin is anticipated; however, the goal is to replace on-site LCEP's equipment 
with connection to off-site centralized district energy infrastructure when available. This should 
reverse the downward trend of the gross margin. Despite this, the gross margin exceeded budget 
by 36% due to the lower-than-budgeted contract costs, utility costs and depreciation expense. 

General and Administration Expenses 

General and administration (G&A) expenses represent costs incurred by LIEC to support 
ongoing operations, including salaries and benefits, administration expenses, insurance, and 
professional fees. In the first quarter of 2025, general and administrative expenses increased by 
13% compared to the same quarter in 2024. This reflects the company's overall growth, which is 
consistent with the business's growth trajectory. The G&A expenses as percentage ofrevenue 
remained consistent at 18%. 

• Salaries and benefits were in line with the budget and 14% higher than QI 2024. This 
increase was driven by the addition of three new employees, approved by the board, to 
support the additional efforts needed to deliver new infrastructure and operate existing 
systems necessary to service LIEC customers. 

• The administration expenses increased by 6% compared to Q 1 2024 due to general 
inflation and company growth and were 5% below the budget. 

• Insurance expense increased by 8% from Q 1 2024 due to general insurance rate increases 
and additional assets being insured under the CCDEU Project Agreement. 

• Professional fees were in line with budget. The year-over-year increase was primarily 
attributable to higher audit fees related to Corix's special purpose entity and the audit of 
LIEC financial statements, driven by the continued growth and complexity of the 
business. 

Contributions, Other Income and Financing Expenses 

The contributions, other income and financing expenses section represents other sources of 
income and costs for the business. The recognized developer contributions revenue was higher 
than Q 1 2024 due to additional on-site assets being placed into service. 
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LIEC continued to invest available cash in secured term deposits, with higher average cash 
balances resulting in improved investment returns compared to Ql 2024. Financing costs related 
to the CCDEU Project Agreement liabilities were higher than the prior year, reflecting ongoing 
investment in capital infrastructure to service new customers. However, due to the careful timing 
of capital investments by staff and slowdown in the development market, these costs remained 
below budget. 

LIEC's earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) and net income 
were lower than prior year, by 1 % and 10%, respectively. This decline is primarily due to a 
lower gross margin, primarily driven by the overall growth of on-site LCEPs, which have a 
higher operation, maintenance and utility cost when compared to natural gas boiler-based interim 
energy centres (see more details above in section related to gross margin). Despite this, EBITDA 
exceeded the budget by 30%, while net income exceeded the budget. Consistent with the 
company's financial plan objectives, any net income will be retained in LIEC's equity to fund 
future capital projects and infrastructure replacements. 

Financial Impact 

None. 

Conclusion 

The pre-audited financial information shows that LIEC's financial position was positive. This 
report will be presented to Council for infonnation. 

Helen Zhao 
Controller 
(604-204-8699) 

Att. 1 : District Energy in Richmond 

Cody Lan 
Assistant Controller 
(604-247-4698) 

2. Interim Statement of Financial Position as of March 31, 2025 ( unaudited) 
3: Interim Income Statement for the period ending March 31, 2025 (unaudited) 
4: Year-To-Date Budget vs. Actual Comparison (unaudited) 
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District Energy in Richmond 

Richmond's 2041 Official Community Plan (OCP) establishes a target to reduce greenhouse gas 
(GHG) emissions 50 percent below 2007 levels by 2030 and 100 percent by 2050. The City 
identified district energy utilities (DEUs) as a leading strategy to achieve the City's GHG 
reduction goals and incorporated Lulu Island Energy Company Ltd. (LIEC) in 2013 for the 
purpose of carrying out the City's district energy initiatives based on the following guiding 
principles: 

1. The DEU will provide end users with energy costs that were competitive with 
conventional energy costs, based on the same level of service. 

2. Council will retain the authority to set customer rates, fees and charges for DEU services. 

3. The DEU will provide a flexible platform for adopting low carbon energy technologies. 

The City established three DEU service areas: ADEU, OVDEU, and CCDEU. Table 1 below 
provides a summary of the developments connected under the DEU service areas to date. 

Table 1 DEU Bylaw Service Areas - Current and Projected Connected Space 

Buildings Residential Floor Area 

To-Date Units To-Date To-Date Build-out 

Alexandra DEU 13 2,200 2.4M ft2 4.4M ft2 

Oval Village DEU 14 3,174 3.7M ft2 6.4M ft2 

City Centre DEU 4 1,549 1.7M ft2 41.6M ft2 

Total 31 6,923 7.8M ft2 52.4M ft2 

The ADEU provides heating and cooling services to ten residential buildings, the large 
commercial development at "Central at Garden City", the Richmond Jamatkhana Temple, and 
Fire Hall No. 3, comprising 2,200 residential units and over 2.4 million square feet of floor area. 
While some electricity was consumed for pumping and equipment operations, most of this 
energy was cunently produced locally from the geo-exchange fields in the greenway corridor 
and West Cambie Park, and highly efficient air source heat pumps. 

The OVDEU services 14 buildings, containing 3,174 residential units. Energy is currently 
supplied from the three interim energy centres with natural gas boilers, which provide 16 MW of 
heating capacity. LIEC received a $6.2 million grant from the CleanBC Communities Fund for 
the design and construction of the sewer heat recovery technology and a pennanent energy centre 
for the area. This project is in the detailed design stage and is expected to be completed in 2028. 
Once completed, the system will be able to produce up to 80% of low-carbon energy from the 
Gilbert Trunk sanitary force main sewer. 

The CCDEU cmTently services four buildings, comprised of 1,549 residential units and 
approximately 1. 7 million square feet of floor area. While off site energy centres progress 
through development, CCDEU utilizes on-site low carbon energy plants as a source of energy 
production. At full build-out, 176 developments, 28,000 residential units and approximately 48 
million square feet of floor space will be serviced by 5 permanent energy centres with over 130 
MW of heating and 115 MW of cooling capacity. The built-out system was estimated to reduce 
over one million tonnes of GHG emissions compared to conventional service. 
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Interim Statement of Financial Position (Unaudited) 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (Note 1) 
Other investments 

Non-current assets: 
Plant and equipment 

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity 

Current and non-current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred developer contributions 
Government grants 
Project Agreement liability 

Shareholder's equity: 
Share capital and contributed surplus 
Retained earnings 

Note 1: 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

March 31, 2025 

As of 
March 31 

2025 

8,595,292 
3,618,631 

13,898,382 

26,112,305 

60,137,654 

86,249,959 

1,281,996 
22,556,785 

514,464 
21,391,608 

45,744,853 

27,397,115 
13,107,991 

40,505,106 

86,249,959 

Attachment 2 

As of 
December 31 

2024 

$ 7,576,940 
4,385,448 

13,727,812 

25,690,200 

58,128,103 

$ 83,818,303 

$ 1,377,195 
22,788,278 

514,462 
19,283,096 

43,963,031 

27,397,115 
12,458,157 

39,855,272 

$ 83,818,303 

Gross book Bad debt 
Aging balance provision 

Proportion 
of provision 

Credit­
impaired 

Current (not past due) 
1 to 30 days past due 
31 to 60 days past due 
61 to 90 days past due 
91 days to 1 year past due 

$ 2,731,490 $ 

17,906 

$ 2,749,396 $ 

*Trade receivable aging table excludes GST receivable, and due from related parties. 
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Attachment 3 

Interim Income Statement (Unaudited) 

March 31 March 31 
2025 2024 $ Changes 

Revenues 

Metered billings (Quarterly) $ 2,731,490 $2,365,568 $365,922 
Service fee 245,372 245,372 

2,976,862 2,610,940 365,922 
Cost of Sales 

Contracts2 674,383 500,353 174,030 

Utilities 840,217 631,070 209,147 
Depreciation 501,311 440,495 60,816 

2,015,911 1,571,918 443,993 

Gross margin 960,951 1,039,022 (78,071) 

General and Administration Expenses 

Salaries and benefits 313,631 274,430 39,201 

Administration expenses 97,026 91,224 5,802 

Insurance 94,585 87,538 7,047 
Professional fees 2 40,673 30,445 10,228 

545,915 483,637 62,278 

Net income before other items 415,036 555,385 (140,349) 

Contributions and Financing Expense 
Developer contributions 231,493 167,033 64,460 

Other income 8,026 5,864 2,162 

Financing income 232,678 195,654 37,024 

Financing cost (237,398) (204,425) (32,973) 

234,799 164,126 70,673 

Net Income $649,835 $719,511 $ (69,676) 

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 
Net income per above $ 649,835 $719,511 $ (69,676) 

Net financing cost 4,720 8,771 (4,051) 
Depreciation expense 501,311 440,495 60,816 

EBITDA $ 1,155,866 $ 1,168,777 $ (12,911) 

2 2024 amount is adjusted from Q 1 2024 unaudited financial statement for comparison purpose, due to cost 
reclassification between professional expense and contracts expense. Net income is not impacted. 

8053390 

% Change 

15% 
0% 

14% 

35% 

33% 
14% 

28% 

(8%) 

14% 

6% 

8% 
34% 

13% 

(25%) 

39% 

37% 
19% 

16% 

43% 

(10%) 

(10%) 

(46%) 

14% 

(1%) 
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Notes: 

Ending Ending 
March 31 March 31 

2025 2024 

Percentage of Revenue 
Gross margin 32% 40% 
General and administration 18% 19% 
Net income 22% 28% 
EBITDA 39% 45% 

8053390 

FIN - 164



Attachment 4 

Year-To-Date Budget vs. Actual Comparison (Unaudited) 

2025 Ql 2025 Ql $ Variance %Variance 
Budget Actual 

Revenues 

Metered Billings (Quarterly) $2,637,331 $2,731,490 $ 94,159 4% 
Service fee 245,372 245,372 0% 

2,882,703 2,976,862 94,159 3% 

Cost of Sales 

Contracts 759,811 674,383 (85,428) (11%) 

Utilities 884,236 840,217 (44,019) (5%) 
Depreciation 533,447 501,311 (32,136) (6%) 

2,177,494 2,015,911 (161,583) (7%) 

Gross margin 705,209 960,951 255,742 36% 

General and Administration Expenses 

Salaries and benefits 314,140 313,631 (509) 0% 
Administration expenses 102,106 97,026 (5,080) (5%) 
Insurance 113,621 94,585 (19,036) (17%) 
Professional Fees 39,640 40,673 1,033 3% 

569,507 545,915 (23,592) (4%) 

Net income before other items 135,702 415,036 279,334 

Contributions and Financing Expense 
Developer contributions 213,450 231,493 18,043 8% 

Other income 6,000 8,026 2,026 34% 

Financing income 227,400 232,678 5,278 2% 

Financing cost (284,850) (237,398) 47,452 (17%) 

162,000 234,799 72,799 45% 

Net Income $297,702 $649,835 $352,133 

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 
Net income per above $ 297,702 $649,835 $ 352,133 

Net Financing cost 57,450 4,720 (52,730) (92%) 
Depreciation expense 533,447 501,311 {32,136} (6%) 

EBITDA $ 888,599 $ 1,155,866 $267,267 30% 
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To: 

From: 

City of 
Richmond 

Finance Committee 

Jerry Chong, CPA, CA 

Report to Committee 

Date: May 21, 2025 

File: 03-1200-09/2025-Vol 
General Manager, Finance & Corporate Services 01 

Re: Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation - 1st Quarter 2025 Financial Information 

Staff Recommendation 

That the Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation- 1st Quarter 2025 Financial Inf01mation report 
from the Director, Finance, Innovation & Technology, Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation be 
received for information. 

Jerry Chong, CPA, CA 
General Manager 
Finance & Corporate Services 
(604-276-4064) 

8060031 

REPORT CONCURRENCE 

APPROVED BY CAO 
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~ -~~, 
RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL 

DATE: May 22, 2025 

TO: Serena Lusk 

Chief Administrative Officer, City of Richmond 

Jerry Chong 

General Manager, Finance & Corporate Services, City of Richmond 

FROM: Rick Dusanj, CPA, CA 

Director of Finance, Innovation & Technology, Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 

Re: Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation - 1st Quarter 2025 Financial information 

Origin 

This staff report addresses the first quarter financial results for the 3 months ended March 31, 2025 ("Ql") 
which was endorsed by the Corporation's Board of Directors. Below are some of the highlights of the 

activities undertaken during Ql. 

Ql Highlights 

Some of the notable highlights from Ql 2025 include: 

The Oval's versatility to host a multitude of different events and competitions was highlighted in Ql with 

a total of 24 taking place. Organizations represented included Wheelchair Basketball, Sitting Volleyball, 

Wheelchair Rugby, Wrestling, Cheer, Climbing, Athletics, Judo, Basketball, Speed Skating, Irish Dance, 

Rhythmic Gymnastics, and Taekwondo. Events ranged from local to national level. 

High Performance continued to deliver programs and services, training camps and clinics to local, 

provincial and national team athletes and groups. Operational highlights included hosting the RBC 

Training Ground event, Rugby 7s Teams (New Zealand, Trinidad and Tobago and Canada) training at the 

Oval prior to the HSBC Rugby 7s competition, Oval Speed Skating Athletes reaching the podium at the BC 

Long Track Championships and the Western Elite Circuit competition and Oval climbing athletes claiming 

20 out of 36 possible podium spots at the Sport Climbing BC Speed Provincial Championships. 

The Oval maintained strong engagement with its active membership base in Ql 2025. Member scans 

averaged 34,000 per month, indicating consistent and frequent visitation patterns. The membership 

base continues to show strong local roots, with 73% of members residing in Richmond. 
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Governance 

Meetings of the Corporation's Audit & Finance Committee, Business Planning Committee and the Board of 
Directors took place during Q1. 

Financial 

The results for the 3 months ended March 31, 2025 show income of $730,000 after amortization compared 
to a budgeted surplus of $348,000, indicating a favorable variance of $382,000 {please see page 4 for the 
Corporation's balance sheet as of March 31, 2025 and page 5 for the statement of operations). In Ql, 

$978,000 was allocated to the reserves/equity. 

Comments on the Financial Results for Ql 

Revenues 

The Ql portion of the estimated 2025 Games Operating Trust Fund {"GOT") distribution of $800,000 was 

recognized as revenue. Memberships, admissions and programs revenue was $3,204,000 in Ql and other 
revenue of $668,000 primarily pertained to space leasing, parking, and interest revenue. Overall, revenue 

was $154,000 favorable to budget. 

Expenses 

Memberships, admissions and program services costs for Ql 2025 were $2,216,000, facility operations costs 

were $1,375,000, and administration and finance expenses were $790,000. Overall, expenditures were 

$228,000 favorable to budget. 

Rick Dusanj, CPA, CA 

Director of Finance, Innovation & Technology, Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation 
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RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL CORPORATION 
Balance sheet 
As at Mar 31, 2025 
Unaudited, prepared by management 

ASSETS 

Financial Assets 
Cash 
Investments 
Inventory 

GOT receivable 
Accounts receivable 

Financial Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Post-employment benefits 

Deferred revenue 
Rental deposits 

Net financial assets 

Non-Financial Assets 
Tangible capital assets 

Prepaid expenses and other deposits 

Accumulated Surplus (Note 1) 

$ 

$ 

Note 1 - Breakdown of accumulated surplus account is as follows: 
Investment in capital assets 

Reserves/Provisions 

Common Shares 

Surplus 

Mar 31 2025 

1,779,665 
18,533,379 

182,451 
800,000 

1,015,805 
22,311,301 

1,708,762 
769,850 

10,521,580 
11,781 

13,011,973 

9,299,328 

13,787,328 
268,651 

14,055,979 

23,355,307 

8,105,563 
14,436,679 

1 

813,063 
23,355,307 

The Accumulated Surplus shown above represents the Corporation's Shareholder's Equity. The 
investment in capital assets represents funding that has already been spent on existing capital 
assets currently being depreciated. The reserves/provisions balance primarily includes committed 
funding for approved capital projects as well as funding required for future minor capital 
expenditures. In addition, at the end of each year, the majority of the surplus balance is 
transferred to the capital reserves to primarily fund the Oval's future minor capital program, 
which has averaged $1.81M annually over the past 5 years. The amount transferred each quarter 
varies and the final amount is determined by the Capital Works Committee in accordance with the 
operating agreement. 

Numbers may be off due to rounding. 
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